
Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address
Attended 

December 3, 

2014 Meeting 

Arnold Tom Tucson Water tarnoldl@ci.tucson.az.us 

Atkins Lisa CAP laatkins@gmail.com 

Avery Christopher Tucson Water Christo12her.Ave[Y@tucsonaz.gov 

Bauer Mary matycbauer@gmail.com 

Beadnell Jim U.S. Bureau of Reclamation i bead ne ll@usbr.gov 

Benemelis Perri CAP Qbenemelis@caQ-az.com 

Betcher Brian MSIDD brian@msidd.com 

Bevins Orson orson.bevins@gmail.com 

Blegen Ron rblegen@golder.com 

Block Mike Metro Water mblock@metrowater.com 

Bodenchuk John ASLD jbodenchuk@azland.gov ✓l..J1 : r1 • Vi ., C Sf s-
Braun Eric Gilbert, Town of eric.braun@gilbertaz.gov 

Brooks George editor@theebonycactus.com 

Brothers Kay Las Vegas Valley Water District Kal'..Brothers@lvvwd.com 
, 

Brown Kelly ADWR kbrown@azwater.gov [ ,,'f?v--, 
Buma Grant CRIT grant.buma@crit-nsn.gov 

Burns Gayle CAP gburnsaz@cox.net 

Buschatzke Tom ADWR tbuschatzke@azwater.gov 

Bushner Greg Vidler Water GBushner@vidlerwater.com 

Cannon-Hie Pamela Qamelacetie@cox.net 

Capps Gregg Chandler, City of Gregg.Cai;rns@chandleraz.gov 

Carlson Andrea alcarlson@caQ-az.com 

Carlson Andrea CAP alcarlson@caQ-az.com 

Carpenter Guy CAP guy@arizonawaterguy.com 

Ceccarelli-Wolf Sally EPCOR sceccarelli-wolf@eQcor.com 

Chandler Randy USBOR rchandler@usbr.gov 

Chandley Cindy Snell & Wilmer cchandley@swlaw.com 

Chappell Barbara Avondale, City of bchaQQell@avondale.org 

Commandeur Leo Global Water Resources Leo.Commandeur@gwresources.com _---7 

Cooke Ted CAP tcooke@caQ-az.com < f 4'__.,/ � 
Crockett David Flowing Wells Irrigation District dcrockett@fwid.org 

Cullom Chuck CAP ccullom@ca12-az.com 

Culp Peter Squire Sanders QCUIQ@ssd.com 

Curtis MCURTIS401@aol.com 

Damas Wayne Sunbelt Holdings wdames@sunbeltholdings.com 

Danos Val AMWUA vdanos@amwua.org 
I 

�-

DeMarco Tony CAP ademarco@caQ-az.com ✓..--Y\.-'-7\. 

Dent Patrick CAP 12dent@ca12-az.com u 

Dishlip Herb Herb Dishlip Consulting herbdishliQ@cox.net 

Donnnely David Las Vegas Valley Water District david.donnelly@lvvwd.com 

Downing James Jim@harcuvarco.com 

Dunham Doug ADWR dwdunham@azwater.gov 

Dunlap Doug CAP ddunla12@ca12-az.com 

Ehlers Jeff SRP jwehlers@sr12net.com 

Entsminger John Las Vegas Valley Water District John.Entsminger@lvvwd.com 

Erlandsen Evelyn ADWR ejerlandsen@azwater.gov 

Fabritz-Whitne Sandra Freeport McMoRan sandra fabritzwhitney@fmi.com 

Fairbanks Frank CAP '· frank.fairbanks@cox.net 

Farley Tom tomfarley@aaronline.com 

Farmer Scott scott@land-homes.com 

Ferguson Dan dferg@email.arizona.edu 

Ferris Kathy AMWUA kferris@amwua.org 

Flores Nan nxf@cox.net 

Forbes Denise Ryley Carlock & Applewhite dforbes@rcalaw.com 

Fowler Ron Ronald.W.Fowler@usace.army.mil 

Franzoy Gene Franzoy Consulting Franzo':{consulting@cox.net 

Fuerst Dee CAP dfuerst@caQ-az.com ,,zez_,,t-&f' ./ 
Garrick Dustin dustingarrick@gmail.com / 

George Maureen mrglawl@frontier.com 

George Maureen georgemaureen373@gmail.com 

Gin Gary Phoenix, City of gary.gin@Qhoenix.gov " -
Given Gary CAP ggiven@ca12-az.com TJI)� 
Goddard Terry CAP terry@terr':{goddard.com fl 
Gray Jeff R&R Partners jeff.gray@rr12artners.com 

Griffin Gail Arizona Senate ggriffin@azleg.gov 

Grignano Laura CAP lgrignano@ca12-az.com j(7{t')i�} 
Gross Don ADWR d jgross@azwate r .gov ilJ��� 
Haberman mhaberman@lrlaw.com V 

Haley Paul Town of Gilbert haley.Qaul@gilbertaz.gov 

Harbour Tom CAP tharbour@caQ-az.com 

Harkins Jayne Colorado River Commission of Nevada jharkins@crc.nv.gov 

Harrell Tom tharrell@azwater.com 

Harris Christopher Colorado River Board of California csha rris@crb.ca .gov 

Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group jim@jv85194.com 

Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group jim@ed-3.org 

Hartdegen Jim CAP jim@jv85194.com 

Haws Mitch USBOR mhaws@usbr.gov 



Attended 
Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address

December 3, 

2014 Meeting 

Hendricks Paul Consultant Qhendricks@cox.net 

Hendrix Mike Mohave County mike.hendrix@mohavecounty.us 

Henley Tim AWBA tjhenley@azwater.gov 

Henning Brian CAP bhenning@caQ-az.com 

Hofert Conrad chofert@cox.net 

Holler Eric USBOR eholler@usbr.gov 

Holway Jim CAP HolwayforCAWCD@gmail.com 

lkeya Deanna ADWR dkikeya@azwater.gov 

Jacobs Pat CAP lmjiv@lion-l.com 

Jardee jhardee@cox.net 

Jesser MJ CAP m jesser@caQ-az.com 

Johanson Hakon Gilbert, Town of hakon.Johanson@gilbert.gov 

Johnson Theresa ADWR tjohnson@azwater.gov 

Johnson Jeff Las Vegas Valley Water District jeff.johnson@lvvwd.com 

Jones Dan Salmon, Lewis & Weldon dbj@slwQlc.com 

Kai Herb Kai Farms herb@kaifarms.com 

Kamienski Eric Tempe, City of eric kamienski@temQe.gov 

Klein Elisa City of Scottsdale eklein@scottsdaleaz.gov 

Klobas Nicole AWBA staff ndklobas@azwater.gov 

Knox Kathi Knox Consulting kathiknox@cox.net 

Korich Dee Tucson Water Dee.Korich@tucsonaz.gov 

Kros Jeffery AMWUA kfros@amwua.org 

Kupel Doug Glendale, City of DKu12el@GLENDALEAZ.COM 

Kusel Diane ADWR djkusel@azwater.gov 

Lacey Michael ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

Lacey Mike ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

Lane Colleen ADWR cklane@azwater.gov 

Lea Harold Active Water Markets haroldlea@activewatermarkets.com 

Leary Jason Brown and Caldwell jleary:@brwncald.com 

Lenderking Jake Epcor jlenderking@e12cor.com 

Lew Mark NPVA mark@nQva.net 

Lewis Mark CAP mark@marklewis.com 

Little Val vlittle@ag.arizona.edu 

Macre Heather CAP Heathermacre4CAWCD@gmail.com 

Maguire Rita Maguire & Pearce rmaguire@m12waterlaw.com 

Maher Thomas SNWA thomas.maher@snwa.com 

Malara Mike Greenstone mmalano@greenstonerQ.com 

Maniccia Peter 12maniccia@homebfc.com 

Marquez Lawrence USBOR lrmarguez@usbr.gov 

Martorana Karlene Snell & Wilmer kmartorana@swlaw.com 

Mawhinney John jtm012@comcast.net 

Mccann Tom CAP tmccann@caQ-az.com 

McEachern Ron CAIDD manager@caidd.com 

McJunkin Christa SRP christa.mcjunkin@sr12net.com 

McKenna Juliet Errol Montgomery jmckenna@elmontgomery.com 

McMullen Patrick 12atrick.mcmullen@itcaonline.com 

Megdal Sharon CAP smegdal@cals.arizona.edu 

Mendoza Carlos "running wolf" cleanrecovervsystem@gmail.com 

Merrill Dave Vidler Water dmerrill@vidlerwater.com 

Micetic Donna CAP dmicetic@caQ-az.com 

Miller Adam City of Phoenix adam.miller@Qhoenix.gov 

Mitchell Kim Consultant krmitchell@cox.net 

Moore Colette Mesa, City of Colette.Moore@mesaaz.gov 

Moore Colette SRP colette.moore@srQnet.com 

Moreno Michelle ADWR mamoreno@azwater.gov 

Morrison Richard rnm@slwQlc.com 

Moulton Cynthia CAP cyter1eegrace7@yahoo.com 

Moyes Jay jimoyes@lawms.com 

Myers MHMVERS@aol.com 

Nally Karen knallylaw@cox.net 

Neal Cliff Phoenix, City of cliff. nea l@Qhoenix.gov 

Nelson Doug DougCNelson@cox.net 

Newlin dmnewlin@aol.com 

Nunez Christine Surprise, City of Christine.Nunez@surQriseaz.com 

O'Connell Virginia AWBA voconnell@azwater.gov 

Olszak Nathan singlemn21@hotmail.com 

Orme Paul Salmon, Lewis & Weldon Qro@slwQlc.com 

Ozomaro Jack CAP jozomaro@caQ-az.com 

Parker Gary GRIDD GLParker@griidd.com 

Pearce Mike Maguire & Pearce mr2earce@m12waterlaw.com 

Pearthree Marie CAP mr2earthree@caQ-az.com 

Perone Carol L. Colorado River Commission of Nevada cl12erone@crc.nv.gov 

Philbin Asia Tucson Water asia.Qhilbin@tucsonaz.gov 

Pickard Pamela CAP QQicka rd@cox.net 

Pierson Timothy GRIC tim.12ierson@gric.nsn.us 

Purcell Larry SDCWA IQurcell@sdcwa.org 

Quigley Andrew Tucson Water and rew .g u igley@tucsonaz.gov 



Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address
Attended 

December 3, 

2014 Meeting 

Henning Brian CAP bhenning@cag-az.com 

Hofert Conrad chofert@cox.net 

Holler Eric USBOR eholler@usbr.gov 

Holway Jim CAP HolwayforCAWCD@gmail.com 

lkeya Deanna ADWR dkikeya@azwater.gov Jr-A 
Jacobs Pat CAP lmjiv@lion-1.com 

Jardee jhardee@cox.net 

Jesser MJ CAP mjesser@caQ-az.com 

Johanson Hakon Gilbert, Town of hakon.Johanson@gilbert.gov 

Johnson Theresa ADWR tjoh nson@azwater.gov 

Johnson Jeff Las Vegas Valley Water District jeff. johnson@lvvwd.com 

Jones Dan Salmon, Lewis & Weldon dbj@slwQlc.com 

Kai Herb Kai Farms herb@kaifarms.com 

Kamienski Eric Tempe, City of eric kamienski@temQe.gov 

Klein Elisa City of Scottsdale eklein@scottsdaleaz.gov 

Klobas Nicole AWBA staff ndklobas@azwater.gov V 
Knox Kathi Knox Consulting kathiknox@cox.net 

Korich Dee Tucson Water Dee.Korich@tucsonaz.gov 

Kros Jeffery AMWUA kfros@amwua.org 

Kupel Doug Glendale, City of DKui:1el@GLENDALEAZ.COM £/ 
Kusel Diane ADWR djkusel@azwater.gov 

Lacey Michael ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

Lacey Mike ADWR mjlace�@azwater.gov 

Lane Colleen ADWR cklane@azwater.gov 

Lea Harold Active Water Markets ha rold lea@activewaterma rkets. com 

Leary Jason Brown and Caldwell jleai:y@brwncald.com 

Lenderking Jake Epcor jlenderking@ei:1cor.com 

Lew Mark NPVA mark@n12va.net 

Lewis Mark CAP mark@marklewis.com 

Little Val vlittle@ag.arizona.edu 

Macre Heather CAP Heat he rmacre4CA WCD@gma i I.com 

Maguire Rita Maguire & Pearce rmaguire@mQwaterlaw.com 

Maher Thomas SNWA thomas.maher@snwa.com 1/ 
Malaro Mike Greenstone mmalano@greenstonerQ.com 

Maniccia Peter Qmaniccia@homebfc.com 

Marquez Lawrence USBOR lrmarguez@usbr.gov 

Martorana Karlene Snell & Wilmer kmartorana@swlaw.com 

Mawhinney John jtm012@comcast.net 

Mccann Tom CAP tmccann@caQ-az.com ·7),-,. � 
McEachern Ron CAIDD manager@caidd.com 

McJunkin Christa SRP christa.mcjunkin@srQnet.com 

McKenna Juliet Errol Montgomery jmckenna@elmontgomei:y.com 

McMullen Patrick Qatrick.mcmullen@itcaonline.com 

Megdal Sharon CAP smegdal@cals.arizona.edu 

Mendoza Carlos "running wolf" cleanrecove[Ysystem@gmail.com 

Merrill Dave Vidler Water dmerrill@vidlerwater.com 

Micetic Donna CAP dmicetic@ca(!-az.com 

Miller Adam City of Phoenix adam.miller@Qhoenix.gov 

Mitchell Kim Consultant krmitchell@cox.net 

Mnl"'lrP ,- I .. - -

--·---- ,. ---, Lily VI llt:llt:, IVIUOre(WIII '"'·

Moore Colette SRP colette.moore@srQnet.com ,� 
Moreno Michelle ADWR mamoreno@azwater.gov 

Morrison Richard rnm@slw(!lc.com 

Moulton Cynthia CAP c�terleegrace 7@�ahoo.com 

Moyes Jay jimoyes@lawms.com 

Myers MHMYERS@aol.com 

Nally Karen kna llylaw@cox.net 

Neal Cliff Phoenix, City of cliff.neal@i:1hoenix.gov tr� .. 

Nelson Doug DougCNelson@cox.net 

Newlin dmnewlin@aol.com 

Nunez Christine Surprise, City of Christine.Nunez@sur(!riseaz.com 

O'Connell Virginia AWBA voconnell@azwater.gov 

Olszak Nathan singlemn21@hotmail.com 
- .,.-:;...-.. 

Orme Paul Salmon, Lewis & Weldon 12ro@slwQlc.com \./4'� 
Ozomaro Jack CAP jozomaro@ca12-az.com I:\� 
Parker Gary GRIDD GLParker@griidd.com 

Pearce Mike Maguire & Pearce mQearce@mQwaterlaw.com 

Pearthree Marie CAP mQearthree@cag-az.com 

Perone Carol L. Colorado River Commission of Nevada clQerone@crc.nv.gov 

Philbin Asia Tucson Water asia.Qhilbin@tucsonaz.gov 

Pickard Pamela CAP QQickard@cox.net 

Pierson Timothy GRIC tim. Qierson@gric. nsn. us 

Purcell Larry SDCWA l12urcell@sdcwa.org 

Quigley Andrew Tucson Water andrew.guigley@tucsonaz.gov 

Ri;iy mray@azleg.gov 

Reece Mary USBOR mreece@usbr.gov 

Renner George georenner@aol.com 

Roberts Dave SRP dcrobert@srQnet.com 

Roos mroos@water.ca.gov 

Rossi Terri Sue AWBA tsrossi@azwater.gov 



Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address
Attended 

December 3, 

2014 Meeting 

Arnold Tom Tucson Water tarnold1@ci.tucson.az.us 

Atkins Lisa CAP laatkins@gmail.com 

Avery Christopher Tucson Water Christo(;!her.Ave[Y@tucsonaz.gov 

Bauer Mary marycbauer@gmail.com 

Beadnell Jim U.S. Bureau of Reclamation jbeadnell@usbr.gov 

Benemelis Perri CAP (;!benemelis@caQ-az.com 

Betcher Brian MSIDD brian@msidd.com 

Bevins Orson orson.bevins@gmail.com 

Blegen Ron rblegen@golder.com 

Block Mike Metro Water mblock@metrowater.com 

Bodenchuk John ASLD jbodenchuk@azland.gov 

Braun Eric Gilbert, Town of eric.braun@gilbertaz.gov 

Brooks George editor@theebon'r'cactus.com 

Brothers Kay Las Vegas Valley Water District Ka'r',Brothers@lvvwd.com 

Brown Kelly ADWR kbrown@azwater.gov 

Buma Grant CRIT grant.buma@crit-nsn.gov 

Burns Gayle CAP gburnsaz@cox.net 

Buschatzke Tom ADWR tbuschatz ke@azwater.gov 

Bushner Greg Vidler Water GBushner@vidlerwater.com 

Cannon-Etie Pamela (;!a melacetie@cox.net 

Capps Gregg Chandler, City of Gregg.Ca(;!QS@chandleraz.gov 

Carlson Andrea alcarlson@ca(;!-az.com 

Carlson Andrea CAP alcarlson@cai;1-az.com 

Carpenter Guy CAP guy@arizonawaterguy.com 

Ceccarelli-Wolf Sally EPCOR sceccarelli-wolf@e(;!cor.com 

Chandler Randy USBOR rchandler@usbr.gov 

Chandley Cindy Snell & Wilmer cchandle'r'@swlaw.com 

Chappell Barbara Avondale, City of bcha i;1i;1ell@avonda le .org 

Commandeur Leo Global Water Resources Leo.Commandeur@gwresources.com 

Cooke Ted CAP tcooke@caQ-az.com 

Crockett David Flowing Wells Irrigation District dcrockett@fwid.org 

Cullom Chuck CAP ccullom@caQ-az.com 

Culp Peter Squire Sanders 12cul12@ssd.com 

Curtis MCURTIS401@aol.com 

Damas Wayne Sunbelt Holdings wdames@sunbeltholdings.com 

Danos Val AMWUA vdanos@amwua.org 

DeMarco Tony CAP ademarco@cai;1-az.com 

Dent Patrick CAP i;1dent@ca12-az.com 

Dishlip Herb Herb Dishlip Consulting herbdishlii;1@cox.net 

Donnnely David Las Vegas Valley Water District david.donnellll@lvvwd.com 

Downing James Jim@harcuvarco.com 

Dunham Doug ADWR dwdunham@azwater.gov 

Dunlap Doug CAP ddunla12@ca12-az.com 

Ehlers Jeff SRP jwehlers@sq2net.com 

Entsminger John Las Vegas Valley Water District John.Entsminger@lvvwd.com 

Erlandsen Evelyn ADWR ejerlandsen@azwater.gov 

Fabritz-Whitne, Sandra Freeport McMoRan sandra fabritzwhitney@fmi.com 

Fairbanks Frank CAP frank.fairbanks@cox.net 

Farley Tom tomfarley@aaronline.com 

Farmer Scott scott@land-homes.com 

Ferguson Dan dferg@email.arizona.edu 

Ferris Kathy AMWUA kferris@amwua.org 

Flores Nan nxf@cox.net 

Forbes Denise Ryley Carlock & Applewhite dforbes@rcalaw.com 

Fowler Ron Ronald.W.Fowler@usace.army.mil 

Franzoy Gene Franzoy Consulting Fra nzollconsu lting@cox.net 

Fuerst Dee CAP dfuerst@cai;1-az.com 

Garrick Dustin dustingarrick@gmail.com 

George Maureen mrglawl@frontier.com 

George Maureen georgemaureen373@gmail.com 

Gin Gary Phoenix, City of ga[Y.gin@Qhoenix.gov 

Given Gary CAP ggiven@ca12-az.com 

Goddard Terry CAP ter['r'@terrygoddard.com 

Gray Jeff R&R Partners jeff.grall@rri;1artners.com 

Griffin Gail Arizona Senate ggriffin@azleg.gov 

Grignano Laura CAP lgrignano@cai;1-az.com 

Gross Don ADWR djgross@azwater.gov 

Haberman mhaberman@lrlaw.com 

Haley Paul Town of Gilbert haley.i;1aul@gilbertaz.gov 

Harbour Tom CAP tharbour@ca12-az.com 

Harkins Jayne Colorado River Commission of Nevada jharkins@crc.nv.gov 

Harrell Tom tharrell@azwater.com 

Harris Christopher Colorado River Board of California csharris@crb.ca.gov 

Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group jim@jv8S194.com 

Hartdegen Jim The Hartdegen Group jim@ed-3.org 

Hartdegen Jim CAP jim@jv8S194.com 

Haws Mitch USBOR mhaws@usbr.gov 

Hendricks Paul Consultant 12hendricks@cox.net 

Hendrix Mike Mohave County mike.hendrix@mohavecountll.us 

Henley Tim AWBA tjhenley@azwater.gov 



Last Name First Name Organization 

Rot Stephen Scottsdale, City of 

Rule Dennis CAGRD 

Rupprecht Candice 

Ruzgerian Harry 

Saletta Phil Oro Valley, Town of 

Schehuber 

Schmidt Sheila 

Schmitt Kathryn CAP 

Schwartz-Mano Bridgette CAP 

Seas holes Ken CAP 

Sejkora Bob Arizona State Parks 

Sharpe Pico Holdings 

Sherrill Chip MCWA 

Shipman Taylor Errol Montgomery 

Siegel Rich SRP 

Silvani Gerard Phoenix, City of 

Simon Benjamin 

Singelton Joe PCWAA 

Sinkey Erica Vidler Water 

Slowinski Ken ADWR 

Snider David Pinal County 

Spatton 

Staudenmaier Bill Snell & Wilmer 

Stewart Annie Fennemore Craig 

Stinnett Robin SRP 

Stirling Scott 

Stowe Tami Arizona House of Representatives 

Strosnider Scott Tucson Water 

Sullivan William 

Sullivan Ryan House of Represenatives 

Swan 

Sweeney Sheryl Ryley Carlock & Applewhite 

Tamashiro Larry Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Tannler jeff ADWR 

Tenney Warren CAP 

Thompson Crystal CAP 

Thorley Matthew Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Timian-Palmer Dorothy Vidler 

Tobin Andrew Arizona House of Representatives 

Tosline Deborah U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 

Toy Doug Chandler, City of 

Turkett Warren CRCN 

Udall Chris Agribusiness Council 

van Allen Bill New Magma 

VanQuathem Michele Ryley Carlock & Applewhite 

Vasquez Suzanne Phoenix, City of 

Vick Margaret ITCA 

Walker Shelly MSIDD 

Ward Grant MSIDD 

Whitler Ron Buckeye, Town of 

Widmark Derrick 

Williams John SRP 

Williams Roger 

Wilson Richard 

Wilson Walley Tucson Water 

Wilson 

Woner Jeff Tonopah Irrigation District 

Wong Ron BKW Famrs 

Zimmerman Carol CAP 

CAIDD 

CMID 

r�i \ �sv ,, o c'"J S7 S
J

JvJA 

Attended 
E-Mail Address

December 3, 

2014 Meeting 

srot@scottsdaleaz.gov 

drule@cag-az.com 

candicer@cals.arizona.edu 

hruzgerian@mwdh2o.com 

gsaletta@orovalleyaz.gov 

mschlehuber@greenstonerg.com 

sschmidt@gustlaw.com 

kschmitt@ca12-az.com 

bschwartzmanock@ca12-az.com 

kseasholes@cai::1-az.com 

rds2@azstategarks.gov 'ves 
rshar12e@gicoholdings.com 

,. 

azmcwa@gmail.com 

tshii;1man@elmontgome!}'..com 

rssiegel@srgnet.com 

gerard.silvani@ghoenix.gov 

Benjamin Simon@ios.doi.gov 

jsingleton@gcwaa-az.org 

esinkey@vidlerwater.com 

kcslowinski@azwater.gov 

davidsnider@cybertrails.com 

dsQatton@aol.com 

wstaudenmaier@swlaw.com 

ASTEWART@FCLAW.com 

robin.stinnett@srgnet.com {--;,r-,, 
sstirling@beusgilbert.com 

tstowe@azleg.gov 

scott.strosnider@tucsonaz.gov 

wsullivan@cgsuslaw.com 

rsullivan@azleg.gov /)_ks 
whswan@aol.com 

� 

ssweeney@rcalaw.com 

lar!}'.. tamashiro@lvvwd.com 

jmtannler@azwater.gov � 
wtenney@metrowater.com 

cthomgson@cag-az.com 

matthew.thorley@lvvwd.com 

dorothy@vidlerwater.com 

atobin@azleg.gov 

dtosline@usbr.gov 

doug.toy@chandleraz.gov 

wturkett@crc.nv.gov 

chris@agribusinessarizona.org 

bvanallennewmagma@mchsi.com 

mvanguathem@rcalaw.com 

suzanne.vasguez@ghoenix.gov 

margaret.vick@mvicklaw.com 

shelly@msidd.com 

grant@msidd.com 

rwhitler@buckeyeaz.gov 

info@diablotrust.org 

mflowe@srgnet.com 

rwilliams@torrentresources.com 

wilsonwater@aol.com 

wally.wilson@tucsonaz.gov t,_,f'_/ 
mwilson21(@cox.net 

TIDDistrictAdmin@krsaline.com 

ron@bkwfarms.com 

carol@zimmermancom.com 

Glinda@caidd.com 

cmid12253@comcast.net 

agarizona@ag.org 

hlh51@aol.com 

no4son@earthlink.net 

Qlummernw@aol.com 

gosmon@azleg.gov 

rburnsaz@cox.net 

robinson@gilanet.net 

UmHani@aol.com 

waterllc@earthlink.net 

wbaldo@azleg.gov 

ygliu@hwr.arizona.edu 

Co(��. �-bt.cy,� Sf1wo- .c� �



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8686 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

NOTICE AND FINAL AGENDA OF MEETING OF 
THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on Wednesday, December 3, 2014 at 
10:00 a.m. at the Arizona Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012, Upper Verde Conference Room. The meeting is open to the 
general public. 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

II. Approval of Minutes
• September 17, 2014 meeting

Ill. Expiration of terms for appointed Commission members 

IV. Water Banking Staff Activities
• Deliveries
• Potential future discussions with CAWCD on AWBA participation in Drought

Response Program
• Colorado River status update
• Re-organization of CAWCD

V. Discussion of Potential Legislation for the 2015 Session
• Water storage tax extension
• General fund appropriation

VI. Discussion and approval of 2015 Annual Plan of Operation
• Overview of public comment
• Approval of 2015 Annual Plan of Operation

VII. Discussion and approval of CY 2015 Water Delivery Budget
• Overview of budget
• Approval of budget

VIII. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with Commission attorneys
concerning the following draft agreements (1) Intergovernmental Agreement
between the Arizona Water Banking Authority and the Gila River Indian
Community; (2) Purchase and Sale Agreement for Long-term Storage Credits;
(3) Lease Agreement for Transportation through the CAP/SRP Interconnection
Facility and Storage at the Granite Reef Underground Storage Project and (4)
Water Transportation Agreement between Salt River Valley Water Users'
Association and Arizona Water Banking Authority. In addition, discussion or



AWBA 
Page 2 

consultation for legal advice with Commission attorneys concerning potential 
negotiations with CAWCD regarding the AWBA developing Intentionally Created 
Storage in 2016 and any other item on the agenda. The Commission may 
discuss these matters in executive session pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3) 
and (A)(4). The Commission may decide the matter in the public meeting or 
defer decision to a later date. Discussions and minutes of the executive session 
shall be kept confidential. 

IX. Discussion and potential action regarding matters discussed during Executive
Session.

X. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 

Wednesday, March 18, 2015 
Wednesday, June 17, 2015 
Wednesday, September 16, 2015 
Wednesday, December 2, 2015 

Dated this 25th day of November, 2014 

This is a tentative agenda that is subject to change prior to the scheduled meeting date. 
Please contact the AWBA at (602) 771-8487 24 hrs in advance of meeting for final 

agenda. 

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the 2nd 
floor to sign-in and 

receive a visitor's badge. Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also 
required to sign out and return their badges. Thank you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign 
language interpreter, by contacting Michelle Moreno at 602-771-8530 or 602-771-8501 
(TDD). Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the 
accommodation. 



I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

NOTES: 



II. Approval of Minutes of Meeting

NOTES: 

Move approval of September 17, 2014 A WBA meeting minutes 

ACTION; 

Approve minutes with any needed corrections. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 

September 17, 2014 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chair Michael Lacey welcomed the attendees. All members of the 
Authority were present with Jim Hartdegen attending via telephone. 
Ex-officio members, Senator Gail Griffin and Speaker of the House 
Andy Tobin, were not in attendance. 

Approval of Minutes 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Michael J. Lacey, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 
Clifford A. Neal, Secretary 
Jim Hartdegen 
John Mawhinney 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Andy Tobin 
The Honorable Gail Griffin 

Chair Lacey asked for a motion to approve minutes from the June 18, 2014 regular 
quarterly meeting with some clarification changes made on page two. Vice-Chair, 
Maureen George moved to approve the minutes. Cliff Neal seconded the motion and 
the minutes were approved. 

Water Banking Staff Activities 
Monthly Deliveries. Virginia O'Connell, AWBA Manager, gave an overview of 
deliveries for 2014 stating that deliveries through August were on schedule with 65% of 
deliveries completed. She explained that there could be some turn back water from the 
AWBA's groundwater savings facility partners given the recent rains. If so, there is 
sufficient capacity to store that water at the underground storage facilities. 

Colorado River Status Update. Patrick Dent, CAWCD, gave a presentation called 
"Update on Reclamation Operations and Basin Hydrology". A copy of the Power Point 
presentation is located on the AWBA's website for this meeting. Highlights included: 

• Lake Powell is at 51 % of full capacity with 12.31 million acre-feet of storage
• Lake Mead is at 39% of full capacity with 10.13 million acre-feet of storage
• Unregulated inflow into Lake Powell is at 97%
• Most recent storm will increase the estimated inflow for September of 2014
• Intervening flow is below average for all locations measured
• Recent storm systems have resulted in significant water order cuts on the river

and within CAP so there may be additional unused water from on-River users
and turn back water from CAP customers

• Recent storm events created good flow into Lake Pleasant
• August 24 Month Study shows the lake elevation in Lake Mead at 1,083.37 for

January of 2015, so 2015 will be a normal water supply year.

Mr. Neal asked if CAWCD was planning to leave any unused apportionment in Lake 
Mead as it did last year. Mr. Dent indicated that CAWCD is discussing the matter and 
some water is expected to be left in Lake Mead but the amount is not known at this 
time. 

Recovery Planning Update. Laura Grignano, CAWCD, gave an update on recovery 
planning efforts. She indicated that CAWCD is focusing on developing recovery 
agreements with its customers. Fifteen out of 22 M&I subcontractors recently surveyed 



expressed a willingness to discuss potential recovery partnerships. Meetings have been 
scheduled in September and October to begin those discussions. The ultimate goal is to 
enter into recovery agreements with customers that have recovery capabilities and are 
willing to become partners. CAWCD is also planning to discuss recovery partnership 
opportunities with tribal entities and regional water agencies like the Salt River Project. 
She explained that CAWCD has also established an internal recovery team to ensure 
coordination between departments responsible for recovery. She also emphasized that the 
three agencies (i.e. CAWCD, ADWR and the AWBA) continue to meet on a quarterly basis 
to discuss pertinent recovery issues. 

Indian Settlement Responsibilities. With regard to the White Mountain Apache Tribe 
settlement, Ms. O'Connell explained the deadline for filing an objection to the 
settlement in adjudication court ended September 8, 2014. There were two objections 
filed for the Little Colorado and five for the Gila River general stream adjudication. The 
court has to consider the objections as well as the terms of the settlement. There could 
be a hearing scheduled to hear the objections. The settlement is not likely to become 
enforceable until 2016. There are Federal requirements that must still be met. Once 
enforceable, the AWBA will have a firming obligation of up to 3,750 AF per year when 
NIA priority CAP water is insufficient to meet demand. The Federal government has the 
same firming requirement. 

Regarding the settlement with the Gila River Indian Community (Community), AWBA 
staff continues to work with Community staff on the draft IGA for firming. The 
negotiating team has taken a timeline approach in developing the IGA, using the 
AWBA's Ten-Year Plan as the basis for evaluating and preparing for potential future 
shortages. The IGA will outline the steps that will need to be taken by each party as the 
possibility of a shortage draws closer. A revised draft is currently under review by 
Community staff. Substantial progress has been made and both parties feel optimistic 
that a draft will be available for review by the AWBA Commission at the December 
meeting. 

Finally, Ms. O'Connell briefed Commission members on the general fund appropriation 
request approved by the Commission at the last meeting. The request was for 
$895,000 to meet Indian settlement obligations, specifically to pay for the final 5,000 
acre-feet of planned deliveries to the Southside Replenishment Bank (SSRB) in 2015. 
Staff submitted the request to ADWR. ADWR has decided not to include the request 
under its budget. Instead, the AWBA will be going forward making the request as part 
of the legislative budget process. 

Mr. Mawhinney asked if AWBA staff would have to work the bill. Ms. O'Connell 
indicated that Doug Dunham would still be the AWBA's legislative liaison. Chair Lacey 
added that he would be discussing the process with the Governor's Office the following 
day. Mr. Mawhinney expressed concern that if the AWBA Commission waits until 
December it will be foreclosed from moving forward. Chair Lacey indicated that staff 
already had direction from Commission members and could move forward, and that Ms. 
O'Connell will keep members updated on the progress. 

Discussion on Potential Legislation to Extend the Water Storage Tax 
Ms. O'Connell informed Commission members that the Public Policy Committee of the 

2 



CAWCD Board held a meeting on September 4
th • 

At that meeting, CAWCD staff
presented the 2015 proposed state and federal legislative agendas. Included in the 
discussions was a recommendation to seek legislation to extend the expiration date of 
the Water Storage Tax (4-cent ad valorem tax) from 2017 to 2045 and to keep the 
current statutory language the same. These were initial discussions. The Committee 
was not scheduled to vote on a recommendation to the full Board. A public information 
meeting has been scheduled for September 23

rd 
at 10:00 a.m. to discuss this and other

proposed state legislation. 

Commission members discussed the importance of extending the 4¢ tax and the need 
to have discussions with CAWCD, the AWBA and stakeholders in advance of the 
legislative session on how the existing and potential future revenues will be used. Mr. 
Mawhinney described the history of the CAWCD Board resolution that authorizes use of 
the 4¢ tax for water banking purposes each year. He expressed concern that the 
language in the resolutions had become less explicit over time with regard to water 
banking purposes. He expressed how important CAWCD's commitment to the AWBA 
is going forward and asked how the AWBA should communicate its concerns at the 
upcoming information meeting on September 23

rd
• Ms. George commented that if there

was an opportunity, the AWBA should support use of the 4¢ tax for water banking 
purposes. She also expressed concern that CAWCD would not proceed with the 
legislation if there were changes to the language other than the date change. She 
emphasized how important it was to have discussions before heading to the 
Legislature. Commission member Mawhinney noted that he would be attending the 
September 23

rd 
meeting. 

Mr. Neal asked if the recent credit purchase legislation and related IGA relies upon 
extension of the tax. Ms. O'Connell indicated the IGA and legislation is silent on what 
happens if the tax is extended. Several Commission members expressed that support 
for the extension of the tax should be accompanied by a commitment on CAWCD's part 
to use the tax to support water banking purposes going forward. Mr. Hartdegen 
commented that the parties need to look more closely at the statutes and the IGA, and 
that CAWCD will likely need a better idea of where any credits will be purchased. 

Chair Lacey asked for public comments. Jeffery Kros, Arizona Municipal Water Users 
Association (AMWUA), commented that AMWUA members are not opposed to the 
extension of the tax, but need more specificity on how the monies will be used. 
AMWUA members want a better mechanism for allocating those monies, and its 
members want more accountability and transparency that monies are being used for 
their intended purpose. He also expressed concern that monies collected in Maricopa 
County are being used to benefit other counties and that more proportionality is 
needed. He added that the AMWUA Board would be considering this issue at the end 
of September. 

Draft 2015 Plan of Operation 
Ms. O'Connell reviewed the Preliminary Draft 2015 Plan of Operation (Tables 2, 3 & 4). 
Under the Draft Plan, the AWBA will have 54,100 acre-feet of water available in 2015. 
Of this amount 49,100 acre-feet will be delivered for recharge in the three AMAs: 
15,230 acre-feet in the Phoenix AMA, 9,600 acre-feet in the Pinal AMA, and 24,270 
acre-feet in the Tucson AMA. The remaining 5,000 acre-feet will be delivered to the 

3 



Southside Replenishment Bank (SSRB). Ms. O'Connell indicated that staff is 
proceeding with a water storage permit application for the Granite Reef Underground 
Storage Project (GRUSP) and that the final plan may show some deliveries to GRUSP. 

Ms. O'Connell explained that the water delivery rate increased by $13 to $179 per acre
foot. Staff is proposing that the cost-share rate paid by groundwater savings facility 
operators remain the same at $34/ AF for the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs and $16/ AF for 
the Tucson AMA. She noted that water storage facility rates have increased slightly in 
both AMAs. Under the 2015 Plan, the AWBA expects to accrue approximately 45,000 
acre-feet of credits at a cost of approximately $8.7 million, which includes just over $3 
million in withdrawal fees, over $4 million in 4¢ tax monies and the remaining $2 million 
in shortage reparation monies. Deliveries to the SSRB will cost $895,000. 

Ms. O'Connell informed Commission members of two items are not currently included in 
the Draft 2015 Plan: inter-AMA firming and credit purchase. She indicated that Metro 
Water has expressed an interest in possibly participating in inter-AMA firming, but are 
not able to make a commitment at this time. If they later decide to participate after the 
final plan is adopted, the plan would need to be amended. Regarding credit purchase, 
the AWBA has a potential opportunity in the Tucson AMA to purchase M&I firming 
credits using 4¢ tax monies. In the Phoenix AMA, AWBA does not have a specific 
opportunity, but is considering purchasing credits for Indian firming using withdrawal 
fees. 

Mr. Neal asked if Metro Water agrees to participate in inter-AMA firming but the total 
volume delivered for the year does not change, how will that work? Ms. O'Connell 
responded saying that whatever volume agreed to for inter-AMA firming would be part 
of the existing volume planned for deliveries to Metro Water's facility. The difference 
would be that Maricopa 4¢ tax monies would be used instead of using Tucson monies 
to pay for the deliveries. Mr. Neal asked if that would require approval by CAWCD. Ms. 
O'Connell responded that it would not. Mr. Mawhinney moved to direct staff to 
schedule and hold public meetings on the Draft 2015 Plan of Operation in conjunction 
with the Groundwater Users Advisory Council Meeting in the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson 
AMAs. Ms. George seconded the motion and the motion passed. 

Initial Discussion on Future Use of Shortage Reparation Credits 
Terri Sue Rossi, AWBA Technical Administrator, reviewed the briefing paper on the 
"Use of Credits Accrued from Monies Made Available under the Arizona-Nevada 
Shortage Sharing Agreement". Ms. Rossi explained that when the Commission last 
addressed the issue in 2008, it decided to use the monies to store water across the 
three AMAs, but resolved that it was premature to decide how the resulting credits 
would be used. While immediate resolution of the issue is not necessary before the 
end of the year, the probability of shortage is becoming more immediate. Because the 
credits were intended to be used during the interim period, which lasts through 2026, 
the matter should be addressed before the AWBA has its first firming requirement. 
Based on historical discussions and what is known now, Ms. Rossi described two ends 
of a spectrum for the Board to consider: one end described as "First Come First 
Served" and the other end described as "Allocation based". Under first come first 
served, firming needs realized early on would be met with shortage reparation credits. 

4 



According to the Joint Recovery Plan, this would likely mean Indian and on-River M&I 
firming. 

Members asked for clarification on what is meant by shortage reparation credits would 
not need to be paid back. Ms. O'Connell explained that credits developed using 
general fund appropriation monies must be replaced after they are used by the entity 
that used them, except when they are used for Indian firming. The AWBA was required 
to reserve a reasonable number of credits using general funds to firm on-River supplies. 
To date, the AWBA has only accrued 96% of the 420,000 acre-feet needed. Although 
the general fund credits can be used for any purpose, because the AWBA has not yet 
met its reserve amount for on-River, it is not likely they would be made available for 
other firming purposes. She added that credits developed using 4¢ tax monies do not 
have to be replaced. 

Ms. George explained that her position in the past and continues to be that the credits 
were intended to offset impacts during the interim period. She would advocate that 
staff develop options reflecting the first come first served end of the spectrum. The 
other members agreed. As such, staff will prepare alternatives reflecting that direction. 

Call to the Public 

Val Danos, AMWUA, announced that this would be his last AWBA meeting as he is 
retiring. Everyone wished Mr. Danos well. Chair Lacey announced the next meeting 
dates and asked for a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 11 :14 a.m. 

5 



III. Expiration of Terms for Appointed Commission Members

NOTES: (No action required) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to inform members of their term expirations and the 

Boards and Commissions application process: 

ACTION: None 



Terms for Gubernatorial Appointments to the Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission 

Under 45-2421.5.C Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission members appointed by the 

governor serve a six year term of office. 

These appointments are currently held by: 

1. Clifford A. Neal - who represents an entity that holds a Central Arizona Project M&I

subcontract

2. Maureen George - who represents an entity located in a county adjacent to the

mainstream of the Colorado river that holds a valid contract with the Secretary

executed before June 1, 1996, for diversion and beneficial consumptive use of

Colorado river water in that county, and

3. John Mawhinney - who represents a person who is knowledgeable in water resource

management.

The term of office for gubernatorial appointments begins and ends on the third Monday in 

January. The current expiration is January 19, 2015. 

Commission members may continue to serve beyond the expiration of the term until a 

successor is appointed and assumes office. They may also serve more than one term. 

Appointments or reappointments are accomplished through an online application process. 

Applications and instructions can be found on the Office of Boards and Commissions website: 

http://azgovernor.gov/bc . The office is working with Governor-elect Ducey's transition team 

on the appointments. 



IV. Water Bank Staff Activities

NOTES: (No action required, agenda item for discussion only)

Call on Virginia O'Connell to update members on:

• Monthly deliveries

• Potential future discussions with CA WCD on A WBA participation in Drought

Response Plan

Call on Tom McCann to update members on: 

• Colorado River status update

• Re-organization of CA WCD

ACTION: None 



70 

60 

� 50 

I!! 
u 
ct 
0 40 

� 30 
:; 

i 20 

c3 

10 

30 

25 

i 
I!! 20 
� 
g 
.. 

� 15 

E 10 

0 

5 

r 
0 

jan feb mar 

jan feb mar 

2014 Plan of Operation - INTRASTATE 

DELIVERIES - ALL AMAs 

Planned vs. Actual 

�rn-m 
apr may jun jul aug sep 

DELIVERIES - PINAL AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

apr may jun jul 
[l 
aug sep 

12 

10 

I a

6 

4 

=fr': 
oct nov dee 

c:::a____a -

dee oet nov 

12 

10 

8 

6 

4 

2 

0 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 I 
I 

0 

jan feb mar 

jan feb mar 

DELIVERIES - PHOENIX AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

apr may jun jul aug 

DELIVERIES - TUCSON AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

apr may jun jul aug 

su,,•1==> (l.ia,'Tl'.•-'fl -ICTI.W.jMONTHI.Y) --�""•"""' -ICTUA.(CUMJ I 

sep 

sep 

□ 
Oct nov 

12 

10 

8 

6 

4 

2 

-0 
dee 

12 

10 

i 
I!! 
�
0 
.. 
.. � 
>, 
:E 
'c: 
0 
:. 

8 � 

I!! 
�
.. 

6 � 

till] � 
>, 
:E 
'c: 

4 :!1 

2 

0 
oct nov dee 



Actual Deliveries 2014 24-Nov-14 

Plan of Operation jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee total 

Phoenix AMA 

HIEROGLYPHIC MTNSL O _Q,_ � � _ O�- -�0- 880 _ �ll _ _ 2,809 
500 500 500 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 

AGUA FRIA ·,r §;:is _f L Q_ ii_ 1"32 Q.. - i)'ii7 - - 3,487 
500 500 500 500 1,500 647 0 0 0 0 0 0 4, 147 

TONOPAH DESERT• .,Q_ .: .... .Q_ 0 0 - J _·g _ - -0 3J2 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SUPERSTITION MTNS 1-:'020 1,921 Iss� _: ____,9~ _: O _ 2 0 _ _ _ 4,502 
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,500 

QCIDL .. .... .. -- -- - 1J§f s"l!."lffi 6,213 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 5,230 

Subtotal O 1,568 3,241 2,239 0 0 1,134 1,867 0 7,344 0 O � 
Total to date O 1,568 4,809 7,048 7,048 7,048 8,182 10,049 10,049 17,393 17,393 17,393 17,393 
Projected total to date 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,500 1,500 647 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 o 15,877 

Pinal AMA 
CAIDD - 0 ---::: 0 0 0 0 - 0- _ 0 _ _ _ _ 0 

0 0 3,000 2,000 700 0 0 o_ 0 0 0 0 5,700 
HIDD -0 ---0 ·o-- - .. g'"'" 0 �897 2,793� �O-= = = = 5,700 

0 0 0 0 0 2,000 2,000 1,700 0 0 0 0 5,700 
MSIDD 400 500 900 ]b

""o 900 ··soc ·-21rci ---t(jo" 4,500 

400 500 900-- 900 900 500- � 200 400 400 300 100 5,700 
SSRB -if � -a- � �-9- 0 - ,(bl:J {® 5,800 

0 5,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,000 
Subtotal 400 500 900 4,261 2,539 3,407 2,993 200 400 400 0 0 � 
Total to date 400 900 1,800 6,061 8,600 12,007 15,000 15,200 15,600 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 

Projectedtotaltodate 400 5,500 3,900 2,900 1,600 2,500 2,200 1,900 400 400 300 100 22,100 

Tucson AMA 
AVRA VALLEY - 0 - 0 - -0-- - -5 - O - O - O - 6 0 

0 --0 0 - 0 �0�0-- 0 0 0 0 300 700 1,000 
LOWER SANTA CRuz--(OQQ \�CL_ 0 - Cl_ - 0 - 5-= .9- �90 3,Ilo_· - I,169 7,660 

1,000 1.000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,500 0 6,500 
PIMA MINE ROAD --- � ·5- - r : o : Q.. - ]- : o c,: 

-
1-:§.@ - 1,ooa 

o� ___ o o o o o o o o tooo � � a� 
CAVSARP - �a o-- �o - o - a o - O - o

- ·  o 
�o o o o -o- -ii -o- o o o o o 

SAVSARP 2,0 _QQ.. 1)roo 1,000 3,000 -� :Stfo �- soii s1'4 s'6ii" 13,014 

2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 1,000 1,000 2,000 2,000 14,000 
CMID - 0 - 0 ,, 0 .. 0 2.11 355 423 ffi --,'<fa 1,852 

o -o -r5--�o ,iJ2 1,000 1,000 750 o o o o 3,232 
KAIFARMS-RedRock-- Q _ Cl _ _9_ _ J_ -�O Q _ _ O 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
BKW FARMS -- 0 - Q_ - Q, - -...-2 - o' - O - - - - : 

� O 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Subtotal 3,000 2,000 1,000 3,000 3,211 1,155 1,023 2,705 3,772 2,668 0 0 23,534 
Total to date 3,000 5,000 6,000 9,000 12,211 13,366 14,389 17,094 20,866 23,534 23,534 23,534 23,534 
Projected total to date 3,000 3,000 3,000 2,000 482 1,000 1,000 750 2,000 3,000 4,300 3,244 26,776 

TOTAL 3,400 4,068 5,141 9,500 5,750 4,562 5,150 4,772 4,172 10,412 0 0 56,545 
Total to date 3,400 7,468 12,609 22,109 27,859 32,421 37,571 42,343 46,515 56,927 56,927 56,927 56,927 
Projected total to date 5,400 10,500 8,900 7,400 3,582 4, 147 3,200 3,880 4,400 4,400 5,600 3,344 64,753 



V. Discussion of Potential Legislation for the 2015 Session

NOTES: (Action required) 

Call on Ted Cooke to discuss CAWCD's potential legislation to extend the Water 

Storage ( 4-cent) Tax - (Powerpoint presentation) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide a status update on the A WBA's request for a 

general fund appropriation for FY 2016. 

ACTION: None 



4-Cent Tax Extension

4-Cent Tax Extension Outline

• Historical Timeline

• Current Statutory Language

• Proposed Draft Legislation

• CAP Funding Sources

• Historical Collections & Uses

• Continued Relevance

• CAP's Financial Planning

• Known Financial Obligations

• Example Scenarios

• Considerations

12/2/2014 

CAP 
ClHTM,L�l'IIOflCT 

1 



4-Cent Tax Historical Timeline

• 1990 - The Arizona Legislature authorizes CAP to collect a

property tax in Maricopa and Pima counties to fund the

construction of state demonstration projects ( i.e. water

recharge facilities) for five years (Laws 1990, Chapter 385).

• 1994 - The Legislature modifies the purpose of the tax for

OM&R expenses of the CAP and federal repayment, expands

the taxing authority to include Pinal County, and extends the

tax until 2001 (Laws 1994, Chapter 278).

• 1996 - The Legislature creates the Arizona Water Banking

Authority, authorizes AWBA's use of Four-Cent Tax proceeds

pursuant to CAP Board of Directors resolution, and extends the

tax until January 1, 2017 (Laws 1996, Chapter 308).

CAP 

Timeline Continued 

• 2003 - The Legislature requests a legislative fund transfer of $9

million from the Arizona Water Banking Fund to address state

budgetary shortfalls. The CAWCD Board, by resolution, decides

to retain all Four-Cent Tax revenues in a CAP account. In 2004,

the Legislature sweeps an additional $2 million from the AWBA

fund. Only interest monies from the four-cent tax are swept.

• Post 2003 - The CAWCD annually adopts a resolution to specify

whether Four-Cent tax revenues will be used for federal

repayment, OM&R costs, or shared with the AWBA. Each year

since, CAWCD has used a portion of Four-Cent tax monies to pay

for the costs of AWBA's delivery and storage of CAP water for

M&I firming purposes.

12/2/2014 

2 



Current Statutory Language 

48-3715.03 Arizona water banking fund; disbursement of monies

A. The district's board of directors shall annually determine by resolution whether

all or any part of the tax levied pursuant to section 48-3715.02, subsections Band C

shall be applied to the repayment of the construction costs of the central

Arizona project including interest owed on district repayment contracts

or to the annual operation, maintenance and replacement costs of the central

Arizona project. When the district's board adopts such a resolution, a certified copy
of the resolution shall be delivered to the department of water resources and those
monies specified in the resolution shall be deposited, pursuant to sections 35-146 and
35-147, in the district fund established pursuant to section 48-3712, subsection A,
paragraph 5.

B. Any taxes that are levied pursuant to section 48-3715.02, subsections Band C and

that are not deposited in the district fund established pursuant to section 48-3712,

subsection A, paragraph 5 shall be deposited, pursuant to sections 35-146 and

35-147, in the Arizona water banking fund established by section 45-2425.

l:!��E 

Proposed Draft Legislation 

• Although the authority to levy the tax, its purpose, and distribution is

contained in permanent law, the four-cent tax since 1994 has been

continued and extended through temporary (session) law. One way to

extend the tax is by amending session law:

Section 1. Laws 1994, chapter 278, section 14, as amended by Laws 1996,

chapter 308, section 23, is amended to read:

Section 48-3715.02, Arizona Revised Statutes, a5 amended thi5 act, is 

repealed from and after January 1, � 2045. 

• This proposed draft language would have the effect of extending the four

cent tax through January 1, 2045, with no other statutory changes.

• The year 2045 corresponds to the end of CAP's federal repayment

obligation ($55 M annually) and also coincides with planned closure of

NGS.

12/2/2014 

3 



CAP Funding Sources 

• Water delivery charges (60% of CAP's budget)

• M&I Capital charges - applied exclusively to repayment

• Power Basin and Development Fund revenues {10% of budget) -

applied exclusively to repayment

• 10-cent ad valorem tax, currently collected at the maximum rate

• 4-cent ad valorem tax

• Interest income, reimbursements and other misc. revenues

• CAP is also authorized to issue general obligation and revenue

bonds, but does not currently have any bonds outstandi

1 

What does this cost the home owner? 

$200,000 value =

$8.00 per year 

$100,000 value =

$4.00 per year 

$400,000 value =

$16.00 per year 

12/2/2014 

4 



Historical Collections & Uses 

• From 1991-1996, four-cent tax collections were used for

the construction and operation of state demonstration

projects.

• CAP built entire facilities, parts of others, and stored water,

under the Board's supervision and a public process.

• 1991-1996 collections for this purpose were $34.5 million.

• Underground storage projects completed included Avra

Valley, Pima Mine Road, Lower Santa Cruz, Agua Fria,

Tonopah Desert (partial) and Hieroglyphic Mountains

(partial)

Historical Collections & Uses 

• The 1996 legislation that created the AWBA also required the

CAWCD Board, by annual resolution, to determine the need

and uses of the tax.

• From 1996-2002, the Board of Directors adopted annual

resolutions and chose to reserve the four-cent tax proceeds for

AWBA authorized purposes.

• During this period, $75.3 million was collected by CAP and

transferred to the Arizona Water Banking Fund for M&

firming.

12/2/2014 

5 



Historical Collections & Uses 

• In 2003, because of legislative transfers, the Board of

Directors resolved to protect four-cent tax proceeds by

reserving them in an account maintained by CAP.

• The CAWCD Board continues to annually determine by

resolution the need for the four-cent tax and the amount

that should be levied according to Arizona law.

• From 2003-2013, $76.6 million was collected and used by

CAP to cover OM&R costs of deliveries to AWBA for M&I

firming.

Historical Collections & Uses 

• In summary, since 1996 (through tax year 2013):
o Approximately $298 million has been collected.

o CAWCD Board of Directors has been able to honor every
request of the AWBA for four-cent tax revenues (more than
$150 million).

• The CAWCD Board of Directors voted to use $45 million of 4-
cent tax monies as an alternative to collecting additional OM&R
fees from customers for 2012 and 2013 and increasing M&I
capital charges.

• There is a current balance of $100.8 million, of which $78.4
million has been set aside by Board of Directors resolution fo
M&I firming {2003 - 2009 tax years).

11 

12/2/2014 

6 



Historical Collections & Uses 

• Virtually 100% of the balance relates to collections from the
taxpayers of Maricopa County.

• The distribution of the assessed valuation among the three counties
is very lopsided at the present time (78% Maricopa, 17% Pima, 5%
Pinal).

• AWBP.:s statutory restriction regarding the use of four-cent revenues
has led to the accrued balance for Maricopa County.

• The AWBA, in its mission to develop long-term storage credits for the
state and to track those credits, is required by statute (A.R.S. 45•
2457) to keep an accounting system to ensure that expend
are used to benefit the county from which the funds we

Historical Collections & Uses 

• Unlike the AWBA, geographical statutory restrictions on use of

the four-cent tax do not exist for CAP because it is a multi

county special taxing district responsible for serving the needs

of its three counties.

• Keeping the tax levied at a flat four cents has served Pima and

Pinal counties in striving to meet their M&I firming goals.

12/2/2014 

7 



Historical Collections & Uses 

• In 2013, several unpredictable energy events occurred that impacted

CAP's financial projections.

• CAWCD Board discussed and considered several available options to

address the financial situation at various public meeting forums:

- January 24, 2013 {Finance, Audit and Power)

- March 7, 2013 (CAWCD Board)

- March 21, 2013 (Special CAWCD Board meeting)

- April 4, 2013 {CAWCD Board)

- April 18, 2013 (Finance, Audit and Power)

• On May 2, 2013, the CAWCD Board of Directors voted to use $45

million of 4-cent tax monies as an alternative to collecting add

OM&R fees from customers for 2012 and 2013 and incr

Continued Relevance of the Tax 

• CAP's federal repayment continues through 2045.

• CAP's OM&R expenses are ongoing and are expected

to increase given future uncertainties.

• AWBA's firming goals are ongoing.

12/2/2014 

8 



CAP's Financial Planning 

• CAWCD's current financing model is "pay as you go" - all known
near-term financial obligations are included in the budget and
water rates

• Up to this point, CAWCD's reserves have been adequate for the
purposes of:

Smoothing out the cash flow related to known financial obligations, e.g., 
capital projects, allowing rates to be smooth while expenditures may be 
"lumpy" 

Dealing with unknown financial obligations that present themselves, e.g., 
unplanned infrastructure failure 

• CAWCD is considering revenue bond financing for some major
capital expenditures in the near future (transmission lines) as an
additional smoothing mechanism

Some Major Known Future Financial Obligations 

• Colorado river shortage fixed OM&R
• Colorado river structural deficit (augmentation, intentionally created

surplus, desalination, etc.)
• CAP Canal Aging Infrastructure
• Recovery Infrastructure and Related Needs
• Navajo Generating Station (if it continues in operation through 2045)

o 2019 balloon payment on renewal of land lease and coal contract 

o Annual cost increase 2020 renewal of land lease and coal contract 

o Fixed cost to be absorbed from BART closure of one unit 2020 

o Installation of SCRs for BART on two units 2030 

• Navajo Generating Station (if it closes prior to 204S)
o Replacement of SRP power sales revenue (through 2031) 

o Replacement cost of NGS power plus balance of repayment 

• Cost of BART and contract renewal NEPA and legal challen

• Pending carbon legislation

12/2/2014 

9 



E_x_a_m_p_le_S_c_e _n_a _rio_ s_: _C_ a_p_it _al_C_h_a_rg-=---e _s ___ �____;;:: r�E 
If NGS closes and have to make up $30 million from surplus power sales, can only 
be made up from capital charges 

without funds utilization of f�nd_s 

Allocations that pay Capital Charges 
(af) 
Lost power sales that increase 
federal debt repayment 

4 cent tax funds applied 

Net amount to be made up 

Increase per acre-foot 

750,000 

$30,000,000 

0 

$30,000,000 

$ 40.00 

Decreases capital charge by 

$20/acre-foot per year applied 

Ex a m p le S c e n a rio s: Fixed OM&R Rate 

750,000 

$30,000,000 

$ (15,000,000) 

$15,000,000 

$ 

�r�E - ------------------------= 

Mitigation of shortage expense of $30 million per year, which allows Arizona to 
take its full entitlement. 

without funds utilization of funds 

Annual Deliveries (acre-foot) 

Shortage mitigation cost 

4 cent tax funds applied 

Net amount to be made up 

Increase per acre-foot 

1,500,000 

$30,000,000 

0 

$30,000,000 

$ 20.00 

Decreases Fixed OM&R rate by 

$10/acre-foot per year applied 

1,500,000 

$30,000,000 

$ (15,000,000) 

$15,000,000 

$ 

12/2/2014 

10 



E_x_a_m_p_le_S_c_e _n _ar_io_s _: F_ix_e_d _O_M_&_R_R_at _e ___ �---= £�E 
Shortage occurs which decreases deliveries by 400,000 acre-foot. Normal Fixed 

OM&R rate is $60/af 

Annual Deliveries (acre-

foot) 

Total Fixed OM&R cost 

4 cent tax funds applied 

Net amount to be made 

up 

Increase per acre-foot 

wi hou funds u ilization offunds 

1,500,000 1,100,000 

$90,000,000 $90,000,000 

0 0 

$90,000,000 $90,000,000 

$ 60.00 $ 82.00 

Decreases Fixed OM&R rate by 

$10/acre-foot per year applied 

SI 

Considerations 

1,100,000 

$90,000,000 

$ (15,000,000) 

$75,000,000 

$ 

• lf the 4-cent tax expires, the only place CAWCD can absorb

significant new costs is in water rates and capital charges.

• Burden of additional costs will fall exclusively on water users,

although the benefits of CAP extend to all citizens in the three

counties and the balance of the state. (ASU's Economic Impact of CAP

Study, April 2014)

• Future funding needs to ensure CAP reliability.

12/2/2014 

11 



Go gle earth 

Earth Point Fly To 
Source: 
©2014 Earth Point 
www.earthpoint.us 

For illustration only. User to verify all information. 

s-J Earth Point 

Page 1 



VI. Discussion and Approval of 2015 Annual Plan of Operation

NOTES: (Action required)

Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide an overview of the 2015 Annual Plan of

Operation. (Powerpoint presentation)

ACTION: 

Move adoption of the Water Banking Authority 2015 Annual Plan of Operation as 

submitted with minor or technical changes 



r
 





,,,-.,
 

I
 







r
 







L..111111 
-'-- - - . 

Funding Sources 
• Withdrawal Fees Collected in Phoenix, Pinal and

Tucson AMAs

• 4-Cent Ad valorem Tax

Levied by CAWCD in Maricopa, Pinal, and Pima Counties 

Retained in CAWCD fund accounts since 2003 

Utilized by CAWCD to offset AWBA water storage and 

delivery costs as part of project operating & maintenance 

costs 

• General Fund Appropriations

• Shortage Reparation - Arizona/Nevada Shortage

Sharing

� 



r
 



AMA 

� 
-�

= 

0 

� 

-

rd 

= 
-�

� 

= 
0 

� 

R•JI: fflialllllll 
Recharge Sites Permitted Capacity (AF) Delivery Amount 

USF Hieroglyphic Mtn 35,000 2,000 

Agua Fria 100,000 4,818 

Superstition Mtns 25,000 2,000 

GRUSP 93,000 1,500 

GSF Queen Creek ID 28,000 5,230 

Subtotal 15,548 

GSF Central Arizona 100 110,000 3,200 

Hohokam 100 55,000 3,200 

Maricopa-Stanfield 100 120,000 3,200 

Subtotal 9,600 

USF Avra Valley 11,000 1,800 

SAVSARP 60,000 14,000 

Pima Mine Road 30,000 500 

Lower Santa Cruz 50,000 2,000 

GSF Cortaro-Marana ID 20,000 500 

Kai Farms n,231 1,000 

BKWFarms 14,316 500 

Subtotal 20,300 

Direct Delivery - Southside Replenishment Bank 5,000 

TOTAL DELIVERIES 50,448 





__ a,nding for 2015 Annuci·I--Pla1r1•of-Qoe,r-atitn1 
,, 

Funding Source Estimated Estimated Estimated Credits (AF) 
Available Utilized 

LTSC Purchase Water Storage 

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA $4,700,000 $4,700,000 6,280 16,790 

Pinal AMA $1,500,000 $2,287,200 3,800 0 

Tucson AMA $450,000 $450,000 2,180 0 

CA WCD Offset (4-cent tax) 

Phoenix AMA $12,800,000 $1,868,000 8,180 14,290 

Pinal AMA $800,000 $800,000 5,130 0 

Tucson AMA $3,100,000 $3,100,000 6,990 14,570 

General Fund $895,000 $895,000 0 0 

Shortage Reparation 

Tucson AMA $2,002,200 $2,002,200 9,710 0 

TOTAL $28,847,000 $18,471,200 42,270 45,65o 







Summary of changes- (changes in the Plan have been highlighted in yellow) 

1. Summary

3.6 MAF corrected to 3.4 MAF. The text originally referred to water deliveries and credits. The

volume for water deliveries was inadvertently used for the credit total during text revisions.

2. 2014 Plan of Operation

a. (page 3} -There was a typo in total Arizona uses.

b. (page 4) -Water deliveries were updated based on recent data from CAP

c. (page 6, Table 2.) -Pinal AMA withdrawal fee expenditures for storage were

corrected. The previous values included expenditures for 2014 Southside

Replenishment deliveries.

3. 2015 Plan of Operation

a. (Available Funds, page 8, 2
nd 

paragraph) -A clarifying statement was added

explaining that funding would be a limiting factor in the Tucson AMA if additional

water becomes available

b. (Available Storage Facility Capacity, Page 8) -Narrative was clarified to show that

storage capacity in the Tucson AMA was prioritized based on subcontractor

preferences and that if additional water became available only locations of least

priority remain available. Even so, any additional storage would still be subject to

the availability of funds.

4. Indian Settlements

a. (Southside Replenishment Bank, page 11, 2nd paragraph) - Narrative was changed

to clarify that all deliveries to the Southside Replenishment Bank have been paid

using Pinal AMA withdrawal fees.

5. Storage for Inter-AMA firming

a. (page 12, 1
st 

paragraph) -clarifying edits

b. (page 12, 2
nd 

paragraph) - addition of Metro Water as participant

c. (page 12, 3
rd 

paragraph) - clarification edit

6. Accounting

a. (page 15, Table 5) - Correction due to transposed number found in the formula.

b. (page 16, 1
st 

paragraph) - Language added to show how credit purchases would

change progress toward firming goal.

c. (page 16, Table 6} -Proposed credit purchase was inadvertently included in the

total credits for the Tucson AMA

7. Public Review and Comment - updated based on comments received.



FINAL DRAFT 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL PLAN OF OPERATION 

2015 

1996 .. 

Michael J. Lacey, Chair 

December 2014 



SUMMARY 

The role of the AWBA has changed considerably since its inception in 1996. The AWBA was 
initially established to utilize the unused portion of Arizona's annual Colorado River 
entitlement. In doing so, the AWBA's objectives were to store the water to protect Arizona 
water users against future shortages, to provide groundwater management benefits, and finally 
to assist both California and Nevada through interstate banking. Over time, as the AWBA's 
objectives have been clarified, its responsibilities have expanded in some cases to obligations 

and in all cases to the development of a resource relied upon by many water providers to 
create a reliable water supply. 

During its eighteen years of operation, the AWBA has developed, at the cost of $218 million, 
approximately 3.4 million acre-feet (MAF) of long-term storage credits, 2.5 MAF specifically to 
provide back-up supplies during shortages to certain Arizona cities and Indian communities and 
over 830,000 acre-feet of credits for groundwater management benefits. Still, to be fully 
prepared to meet its current obligations and responsibilities, the AWBA will need to develop 

another 1.1 MAF of credits or their equivalent. Additionally, to establish the Southside 
Replenishment Bank, a State requirement under the Arizona Water Settlements Act, the AWBA 

has delivered 10,000 acre-feet of excess CAP water to the Gila River Indian Community at a cost 
just over $1.4 million. Finally, the AWBA has developed approximately 550,000 acre-feet of 

credits for Nevada's use at a cost to Nevada of $109 million. In addition to these credits, 
another 50,000 acre-feet of credits previously accrued by CAWCD have been applied for 
interstate purposes bringing the total amount of credits available to Nevada to just over 
600,000 acre-feet. 

Because of increased demands from higher priority CAP water users, the amount of excess CAP 
water available to the AWBA has been decreasing. For 2015, the volume available to the AWBA 
is 50,448 acre-feet. Of this amount, the AWBA will store 45,448 acre-feet of water at a cost of 
$8 million and directly deliver 5,000 acre-feet of water for the Southside Replenishment Bank at 

a cost of $895,000. There is no interstate storage planned for 2015. 

In response to its expanding responsibilities and as the reality of shortage has become more 

imminent, the AWBA's governing statutes were amended in 2014 authorizing the AWBA to 
purchase long-term storage credits. In order to continue making progress and to prepare itself 
to meet its responsibilities, the AWBA anticipates purchasing credits in both the Phoenix and 
Tucson AMA utilizing 4-cent tax revenues and withdrawal fees. Additionally, the AWBA is 
considering, for the first time, the concept of storage for inter-AMA firming. While this plan 
does not include storage for inter-AMA firming, as this concept further develops, the 2015 plan 
could be amended to include this as a component. 

Consistent with the AWBA's direction in its 2013 Annual Report, the 2015 Plan of Operation 
continues to focus on meeting the M&I firming goals in the Tucson AMA and completing its 
deliveries to the Southside Replenishment Bank. Related to this second focus, the AWBA is 
attempting to secure a general fund appropriation. 

1 



INTRODUCTION 

( The AWBA was initially created in 1996 to store Arizona's unused Colorado River water 
entitlement in central and southern Arizona to develop long-term storage credits (credits) to: 
(1) firm existing water supplies for Colorado River and CAP M&I water users during Colorado
River shortages or CAP service interruptions; (2) help meet the water management objectives
of the Groundwater Code; (3) meet the State's obligations in the settlement of Indian water
rights claims; and (4) assist Nevada and California through interstate banking. The AWBA's
enabling legislation has been amended over time allowing it to store other renewable supplies
and to purchase credits on top of excess CAP water supplies. The 2015 Plan does not include
the storage of other renewable supplies, however, it does propose the purchase of credits.

Although the AWBA can utilize general fund appropriations to conduct its business, in recent 
years the only funds available to the AWBA have been groundwater withdrawal fees collected 
in the Active Management Areas (AMA) and ad valorem property taxes levied and collected by 
the Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD). The availability of these funds for 
AWBA use varies both on an annual basis and by the amounts collected within each 
AMA/County. There are also restrictions on how the AWBA may utilize these revenues to meet 
its firming responsibilities. The costs to store water for Nevada, the AWBA's only interstate 
partner at this time, are paid by Nevada at the time storage occurs. 

The AWBA's storage of water is accomplished through the Underground Water Storage, Savings 
and Replenishment Program that is administered by the Arizona Department of Water 
Resources (ADWR). Through this program, the AWBA stores renewable water supplies in either 
underground storage (USF) or groundwater savings (GSF) facilities, also refered to as indirect 
storage. The program mandates an accounting of the water stored and the corresponding 
long-term storage credits accrued. The credits will be distributed by the AWBA when future 
conditions warrant. The use of the credits is dependent on the source of funds utilized to 
develop the credits. 

The AWBA is required by statute to approve an annual Plan of Operation (Plan) by January 1 of 
each year. Prior to approval of the final Plan, the AWBA is required to solicit public comment. 
Presentation of the draft Plan must be made at publicly-noticed open meetings at which 
members of the public are permitted to provide comment. A draft of the Plan was presented at 
meetings of the Groundwater Users Advisory Councils (GUAC) for the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson 
AMAs. The AWBA also makes the Plan available on its web page and accepts public comment in 
writing up to the time the final draft Plan is presented for approval. 

The Plan is intended to govern the operations of the AWBA over the course of the entire 
calendar year. The AWBA recognizes that day-to-day adjustments in the normal operations of 
the CAP or the individual storage facilities may affect the actual monthly deliveries made on 
behalf of the AWBA. If the adjustments do not impact the overall annual delivery projections 
contained in the Plan, they will be addressed by staff and reported to the AWBA members on 
an as-needed basis. 

2 



2014 PLAN OF OPERATION 

The AWBA had 74,297 acre-feet of Colorado River water available for use in 2014. This amount 

includes just over 9,500 acre-feet of water turned back by other CAP customers. Arizona also 

plans to leave up to 30,000 acre-feet of unused apportionment in Lake Mead as a benefit to the 

system. Additionally, CAWCD on behalf of the the Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment 

District, agreed to forebear 9,000 acre-feet of water to study a Pilot Conservation Program with 

the Yuma Mesa Irrigation and Drainage District. Arizona's estimated use of Colorado River 

water in 2014 is 2.77Page MAF (see Figure 1). 

ARIZONA USES 

2.79 2.78 2.77 

3.0 
0.13 0.06 0.07 

LL 

1.16 1.13 
1.15 

QJ 2.0 ■ BANK

QJ 
> 

·,.::; ■ OTHER
C. 

1.0 1.49 1.59 1.54 
□CAP

u 

0.0 

2012 2013 2014 

Totals may add differently due to rounding 

Figure 1. Recent Comparison of Colorado River Water Uses by Arizona 

Forecasted direct use of Colorado River water in 2014 in the lower Basin is 7.5 MAF as of 

November 17, 2014 {see Figure 2). 

LOWER BASIN USES 

LL 
9.0 7.44 7.48 7.50 

<i: 
0.23 � 0.22 

QJ 

6.0 
2.78 2.77 

QJ 
> 

C. 

3.0 4.48 4.51 

u 

0.0 

2012 2013 2014 

Totals may add differently due to rounding 

Figure 2. Recent Comparison of Lower Basin Uses of Colorado River Water 

3 

■NEVADA

■ARIZONA

□ CALIFORNIA



The AWBA stored water at both USFs and GSFs in 2014. Table la lists the AWBA's recharge 

partners for 2014, the amount of water that can be stored under each of the AWBA's water 

storage permits, and the amount of water delivered to the facility for the AWBA in 2014. The 

amount of water delivered to a facility is always greater than the amount of long-term storage 

credits accrued by the AWBA because credits are computed by subtracting approximately 1% to 

3% for losses and 5% for a "cut to the aquifer" from the total annual deliveries. Final figures for 

credits accrued generally become available in the middle of the following year after review of 

the annual reports filed with the ADWR. These numbers are reported in the AWBA's Annual 

Report. 

Table la. Recharge Facilities and Water Storage Deliveries for 2014 

AWBA Delivered* 

AMA Facility Type 
Permit (acre-feet) 

Capacity 
Intrastate Interstate 

(acre-feet) 

Tonopah Desert USF 150,000 11,183 0 

Agua Fria USF 100,000 3,680 0 
<[ 

:i: 
ct 

Hieroglyphic Mtns. USF 35,000 4,467 0 

� 
z 

Superstition Mtns. USF 25,000 4,502 0 

Queen Creek ID GSF 28,000 1,589 0 
0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 25,421 0 

Phoenix AMA Subtotal 25,421 

Central Arizona IDD GSF 110,000 1,700 0 

<[ Hohokam IDD GSF 55,000 5,700 0 

Maricopa-Stanfield IDD GSF 120,000 6,700 0 ct 

ct Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 14,100 0 z 

Pinal AMA Subtotal 14,100 

Avra Valley USF 11,000 900 0 

Lower Santa Cruz USF 50,000 9,600 0 
ct SAVSARP USF 60,000 15,380 0 :i: 
<[ 

z 
Pima Mine Road USF 30,000 2,044 0 

0 Cortaro-Marana ID GSF 20,000 1,852 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 29,776 0 
.... 

Tucson AMA Subtotal 29,776 

TOTAL INTRASTATE & INTERSTATE DELIVERIES 69,297 0 

TOTAL RECHARGE DELIVERIES 69,297 

* November and December deliveries estimated

4 



The AWBA also delivered water to meet the requirements of the Gila River Indian Community 

Water Settlement Program (Settlement Program). In 2009, the AWBA entered into an 

intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Gila River Indian Community that identifies the 

procedure for delivering water for meeting a replenishment obligation and for establishing the 

Southside Replenishment Bank identified in the Settlement Program. While these deliveries do 

not accrue long-term storage credits that can be recovered in the future, the Replenishment 

Bank receives a credit for each acre-foot of water delivered. The Replenishment Bank can be 

used as an option for offsetting a replenishment obligation that is incurred because of pumping 

limitations identified in the Arizona Water Settlements Act (Settlements Act) for the Southside 

Protection Zones. Table lb identifies the amount of water the AWBA delivered to the 

Replenishment Bank since 2009. There was no replenishment obligation in 2014. 

Table lb. Southside Replenishment Activities through 2014 

Southside Replenishment Activities 
2014 Obligations/Deliveries Cumulative 

(acre-feet) Obligations/Deliveries (acre-feet) 

Replenishment Obligations 0 0 

Replenishment Bank Deliveries 5,000 10,000 

TOTAL DIRECT DELIVERIES 5,000 10,000 

The 2014 Plan initially identified 59,753 acre-feet of scheduled water deliveries for recharge 

purposes. Additional water became available to the AWBA later in the year from CAP 

customers that turned back water. As a result, the AWBA recharged an estimated 69,297 acre

feet of water. Because of heavy monsoon precipitation, 9,380 acre-feet of the 25,562 acre-feet 

originally scheduled for GSFs was redirected for storage at USFs. Figure 3 identifies the 

storage breakdown between GSFs and USFs for 2014 and provides a comparison between 2014 

and the two previous years. 

RECHARGE BY TYPE 

0.20 

u:-- 0.14 
<( 0.15 
� 

Q) 0.10
·.:::: 
Q) 

-�

0.05 
0 

0.00 

2012 2013 2014 

■ Underground Storage Facility □ Groundwater Savings Facility

Totals may add differently due to rounding 

Figure 3. Recent Comparison of Annual Deliveries to GSFs and USFs 

5 



Table 2 provides an estimate of funds expended for water storage and the location of the 

credits accrued through 2014. 

Table 2. Cumulative Long-term Storage Credits 1997-2014 

Funding 
Phoenix AMA Pinal AMA Tucson AMA Total 

1 

Source Funds Credits Funds Credits Funds 
2 

Credits Funds Credits 

Expended Accrued Expended Accrued Expended Accrued Expended Accrued 

Withdrawal Fees $ 20.3 321,247 $ 17.4 406,400 $ 9 103,328 $ 48 830,974 

Ad valorem Tax $ 95.1 1,355,317 $ 11.3 207,373 $ 46 421,991 $ 152 1,984,690 

General Fund 
3 

$ 1.5 42,316 $ 6.4 306,968 $ 3 54,546 $ 11 403,830 

Indian 
$ $- - -

Appropriation 
- $ 2 28,481 $ 2 28,481 

Shortage 

Reparations 
$ 1.1 20,642 s 1.7 60,507 $ 3 17,753 $ 6 98,902 

Pinal Redirect 
4 

- s - 14,125 $ - - $ - 14,125 

Subtotal $ 118.0 1,739,522 $ 36.8 995,373 $ 63 626,099 $ 218 3,360,994 

Interstate 

Nevada
5 $ 11.4 51,009 $ 71.5 440,241 $ 26 109,791 $ 109 601,041 

Total $ 129.4 1,790,531 $ 108.3 1,435,614 $ 90 735,890 $ 327 3,962,035 

1 
Actual expenditures and credits for 1997-2013; 2014 estimated. 

2 
Includes expenditure of $22,698 in withdrawal fees for the assignment of 234 acre-feet of credits to the AWBA from the 

Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841.01. 
3 
A total of 256,174 acre-feet of credits reserved for the Mohave County Water Authority pursuant to the Amended 

Agreement to Firm Future Supplies 
4 

Credits accrued from water scheduled for the Tucson AMA and redirected to the Pinal AMA for storage at GSFs. Facility 

operators paid 100% of the water delivery rate. 
5 

Includes 50,000 acre-feet of credits tranferred from CAWCD pursuant to Amended Agreement for Interstate Banking. 

2015 PLAN OF OPERATION 

The AWBA plans to recharge 45,448 acre-feet of water in 2015. Water storage will occur in all 

three counties. The AWBA will also deliver 5,000 acre-feet of water to the Gila River Indian 

Reservation for the Southside Replenishment Bank. The AWBA's total deliveries for 2015 will be 

50,448 acre-feet. The AWBA is not planning any interstate storage. 

When developing its Plan of Operation, the AWBA evaluates four critical factors: (1) the 

amount of water available to the AWBA for delivery; (2) the CAP canal capacity available to the 

AWBA for the delivery of water; (3) the funds available and the costs required to deliver the 

water; and (4) the capacity available for use by the AWBA at the various recharge facilities. In 

addition to these critical factors, the AWBA takes into consideration recommendations made by 

6 



the Groundwater Users Advisory Councils (GUAC) of the three AMAs regarding water 

management objectives and priorities for storage. 

I. 

11. 

Water Availability 

The factor of water availability consists of two parts: (1) the amount of water available 

on the Colorado River for diversion by the CAP within Arizona's allocation; and (2) the 

amount of CAP water available to the AWBA for delivery under the existing pool 

structure. 

The proposed Annual Operating Plan (AOP) for water year 2015 distributed by the 

Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) stated that the Intentionally Created Surplus (ICS) 

Condition is the criterion that will govern the release of water for the states in the 

Lower Basin during calendar year 2015. Because Arizona is proposing to create up to 

100,000 acre-feet of ICS, an estimated 2.7 MAF of water will be available for use within 

Arizona. Arizona's on-river use is forecast to be roughly 1.2 MAF, leaving approximately 

1.5 MAF available for diversion by CAP. 

For 2015, the AWBA will purchase excess CAP water from the Statutory Firming Pool 

made available for use by the AWBA, CAGRD, and Bureau of Reclamation pursuant to 

the CAWCD Board of Directors (Board) policy approved on March 6, 2014. The CAGRD 

uses this pool to create its replenishment reserve and has an equal priority to the AWBA 

when using it for that purpose. The Federal government may also order water from this 

pool for meeting its Indian firming obligations. The CAWCD Board establishes the 

volume available in this pool on an annual basis. The quantity available in this pool for 

2015 is 58,726 acre-feet. 

Subtracting the projected uses for the CAGRD replenishment reserve (3,245 acre-feet) 

and Reclamation (5,033 acre-feet), leaves a remaining balance of 50,448 acre-feet for 

the AWBA. Water availability is the primary limiting factor in developing the 2015 Plan. 

CAP System Capacity 

CAP system capacity is approximately 1.8 MAF. Under normal operating conditions, CAP 

diverts approximately 1.6 MAF of water. Reclamation estimates that this amount would 

be available for delivery by CAP in 2015. This amount includes the volume of water to 

be delivered for the AWBA. Because there is still capacity available in the CAP aqueduct 

to deliver additional supplies, capacity within the CAP for the delivery of AWBA water is 

not a limiting factor in this Plan. 

Ill. Available Funds 

The AWBA will have an estimated $6.7 million in withdrawal fee revenues available for 

use in 2015. Of this amount, $4.7 million is estimated to be available for the Phoenix 

AMA, $1.5 million for the Pinal AMA, and $450,000 for the Tucson AMA. Revenues 

include funds collected in 2015 and funds carried over from 2014. 

7 



As in previous years, the CAWCD Board resolved to retain the ad valorem property taxes 

collected in its three-county service area and not to deposit any of those revenues into 

the Arizona Water Banking Fund. Property tax revenues retained by CAWCD can be 

used to offset the cost of AWBA water deliveries in CAWCD's service area. Estimated 

funds available from CAWCD for the 2015 Plan are: Maricopa County ($14 million), Pinal 

County ($800,000), and Pima County ($4.5 million). 

With the exception of the Pinal AMA, funding was not a limiting factor in developing the 

2015 Plan given the amount of water that is available for AWBA use. If more water

becomes available during the year, funding will also be a limiting factor in the Tucson 

AMA. 

IV. Available Storage Facility Capacity

AWBA staff conferred with facility operators to discuss the availability of storage 

capacity at their facilities and their continued interest in participating with the AWBA. 

These discussions confirmed that there was significant interest from facility operators in 

all three AMAs. Because of those discussions, the AWBA is pursuing new permits to 

store water at the Granite Reef Underground Storage Project (GRUSP) and the Salt River 

Project GSF in the Phoenix AMA. In the Tucson AMA, storage capacity was used 

according to the preference expressed by Tucson CAP M&I subcontractors who had 

requested that the AWBA prioritize storage for firming at locations with existing 

recovery capabilities. If additional supplies become available, the AWBA will have 

sufficient capacity to meet its anticipated needs although capacity remaining available in 

the Tucson AMA will be limited to locations of least priority. While storage capacity is 

not a limiting factor for this Plan, the use of additional capacity in the Pinal and Tucson 

AM As is still subject to the availability of funds. 

The Water Delivery Schedule (Table 3) identifies the storage sites for the AWBA's partners for 

2015 and the amount of water scheduled for storage. The second column in this section 

identifies the AWBA's water storage permit capacities for each facility, which are based on the 

maximum permitted storage amounts of the facilities. The actual storage capacities available 

to the AWBA do not typically equal the AWBA's permitted volume because the storage facility 

operators may have agreements with other storage partners. In addition to storage deliveries, 

Table 3 also identifies the amount of water scheduled for meeting the AWBA's Southside 

Replenishment obligations. 

8 



Table 3 

Water Delivery Schedule (Acre-Feet) 

Calendar Year 201 S 
Permitted 

AWBA-Storacie Sites Capacity (AF) Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total 

PHOENIX AMA 
AGUAFRIA 100,000 0 0 0 500 2,500 0 0 0 0 1,818 0 0 4,818 
GRUSP1 93,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500 500 500 • 1,500 

u.. 
HIEROGLYPHIC MTN 35,000 0 0 700 700 0 0 0 0 600 0 0 0 2,000 

::l SUPERSTITION MfNS 35,000 0 0 0 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 
TONOPAH DESERT 150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

10,318 

u.. 
NEW MAGMA 54,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

C/J QUEEN CREEK 28,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,230 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 5,230 
(!J 

TONOPAH ID 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5,230 

AMA TOTAL INTR�TATE 0 0 700 2,200 3,500 0 0 1,230 2,600 3,318 1,500 500 15,548 
PINAL AMA: 

u.. 
CAIDD 110,000 0 0 0 0 0 3,000 200 0 0 0 0 0 3,200 

C/J HOHOKAM 55,000 0 0 0 0 0 1,600 1,600 0 0 0 0 0 3,200 
(!J 

MSIDD 120,000 200 300 500 500 500 300 200 200 200 200 100 0 3,200 
9,600 

AMA TOTAL INTR�TATE 200 300 500 500 500 4,900 2,000 200 200 200 100 0 9,600 
TUCSON AMA'. 

AVRA VALLEY 11,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 450 450 450 450 1,800 
u.. 

LOWER SANTA CRUZ 50,000 0 0 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 0 2,000 
C/J PIMA MINE ROAD 30,000 0 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500 
::l 

0 CAVSARP 100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
SAVSARP 60,000 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 1,300 0 1,000 1,300 14,000 

18,300 

CORT ARO-MARANA ID 20,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 500 0 0 0 0 500 
u.. KAI FARMS (Red Rock) 11,231 0 0 0 0 500 500 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 
(!J BKW Farms 14,316 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 200 200 100 0 500 

2,000 

AMA TOTALINTR�TATE 1,300 1,300 2,800 1,300 1,800 1,800 1,300 1,800 1,950 1,650 1,550 1,750 20,300 

TOTAL INTRASTATE 1,500 1,600 4,000 4,000 5,800 6,700 3,300 3,230 4,750 5,168 3,150 2,250 45,448 
--

TOTAL INTERSTATE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TOTAL RECHARGE 1,500 1,600 4,000 4,000 5,800 6,700 3,300 3,230 4,750 5,168 3,150 2,250 45,448 

DIRECT DELIVERY (Non-Storage): 
Southside Reolenishment Bank 0 0 1,250 0 0 0 0 0 1,250 1,250 0 1,250 5,000 
Southside Replenishment Obligation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
TOT AL DIRECT 0 0 1,250 0 0 0 0 0 1,250 1,250 0 1,250 5,000 

TOT AL DELIVERIES 1,500 1,600 5,250 4,000 5,800 6,700 3,300 3,230 6,000 6,418 3,150 3,500 50,448 
1 Water storage at this facility is conditional on issuance of a water storage permit from ADWR. 

9 



INDIAN SETTLEMENTS 

The Plan does not specifically identify water storage for meeting future State firming 

obligations under the Settlements Act; however, it does incorporate replenishment deliveries 

required under the Gila River Indian Community (GRIC) Settlement Program. 

Indian Firming 

CAP supplies will not be shorted in 2015 and no long-term system outages are anticipated that 

would reduce deliveries to CAP customers. Therefore, the AWBA has no obligation to firm Non

Indian Agricultural (NIA) Priority CAP water supplies in 2015. 

The Settlements Act recognizes three categories where the State has firming responsibilities. 

The first two obligations pertain to firming of NIA Priority CAP water for the GRIC and other 

Arizona tribes in times of shortage for a 100-year period; the third obligation pertains to 

providing assistance to the Secretary of the Interior (Secretary) in carrying out obligations of the 

Southern Arizona Water Rights Settlement Act. 

1. GRIC -The AWBA must ensure that up to 15,000 acre-feet per year of NIA Priority CAP

water be made available to the GRIC during shortages. The AWBA anticipates

developing and utilizing long term storage credits or their equivalent to meet this

obligation. The AWBA did not receive a general fund appropriation for fiscal year (FY)

2015 to assist in meeting this obligation. While the 2015 Plan does not identify

expenditures specifically for Indian firming, withdrawal fees may be used for this

purpose after appropriated funds are expended, therefore credits accrued from this

funding source in 2015 may be used to meet this obligation if necessary. To date, the

only credits identified specifically for meeting this obligation are 105,390 acre-feet of

withdrawal fee credits accrued from water previously stored at the Gila River Indian

Irrigation and Drainage District GSF.

2. Other Tribes -The AWBA is also required to firm up to 8,724 acre-feet per year of CAP

NIA priority water for other Indian Settlements. The White Mountain Apache Tribe

has entered into a settlement which requires the AWBA to firm 3,750 acre feet per

year of the 8,724 acre-feet CAP NIA priority water. As with the GRIC obligation, no

general fund appropriations were made available for this purpose. However, credits

developed under this plan using withdrawal fees could be used for this purpose if

needed. Settlements for other Indian Tribes have not been enacted at this time.

3. Federal Assistance -The AWBA has completed the State obligation to contribute $3

million in cash or in-kind services to assist the Secretary in meeting the Federal

obligation to the Tohono O'odham Nation. This obligation was met by accruing an

equivalent amount of LTS credits that will be distributed to the Secretary during

shortages.

10 



Southside Replenishment Bank 

In addition to the firming requirements of the Settlements Act, the AWBA is required to deliver 

15,000 acre-feet of water to the GRIC for the purpose of establishing the Southside 
Replenishment Bank. The Replenishment Bank will fulfill the obligations created under the 

Settlements Act for protection of the Reservation from off-reservation groundwater pumping. 

The AWBA must deliver a minimum of 1,000 acre-feet per year to establish the Replenishment 
Bank. The AWBA delivered this amount each year from 2009 through 2013, for a total of 5,000 

acre-feet. 

Projections from Reclamation's August 2013 24-Month Study indicated there was a significant 

chance that a Lower Colorado River shortage could be declared in 2016. Recognizing that a 

shortage, if it occurred, would mean there would be no excess CAP water available for low 

priority CAP water users, the AWBA planned to deliver the remaining 10,000 acre-feet of water 

needed to complete the obligation in 2014 and 2015, thus avoiding the risk of not being able to 
make the required deliveries. Consequently, the AWBA delivered 5,000 acre-feet of water to 
the GRIC in 2014, bringing the total delivered to 10,000 acre-feet. Because general fund 

appropriations have not been made available for this purpose, Pinal AMA withdrawal fees, 

including all funds carried over from previous years, have been used to pay for these deliveries, 

which collectively total $1.44 million. Since hydrologic conditions have not improved, the AWBA 
intends to deliver the remaining 5,000 acre-feet in 2015. The AWBA is requesting a general 
fund appropriation for $895,000 in FY 2016 to pay for these deliveries. 

Assignment of Long-term Storage Credits by the Tohono O'odham Nation 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-841.01, the Tohono O'odham Nation (Nation) must offer ten percent of 
any credits they accrue at the Mission Mine Complex to the AWBA at a price per acre-foot that 

is equal to the AWBA's delivery and storage costs at the time of sale. lf the Nation offers the 

AWBA credits in 2015, the AWBA will evaluate the offer to determine if it is reasonable to 
purchase those credits. While these credits may be used for M&I firming or for water 

management purposes, there is a restriction that the credits not be recovered within five miles 
of the exterior boundary of the reservation. 

SHORTAGE REPARATION FUNDS 

The Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) agreed to provide $8 million to the AWBA to 
assist Arizona in offsetting impacts from shortages pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada Shortage

Sharing Agreement. Approximately $6 million has been expended since the agreement was 

executed 2008. The AWBA will expend the remaining $2 million to store water in the Tucson 

AMA in 2015. 

INTERSTATE WATER BANKING 

The AWBA, SNWA, and CRCN executed a Third Amended and Restated Agreement for 
Interstate Banking on May 20, 2013. The amended agreement removed the AWBA's obligation 

to accrue 1.25 MAF of long-term storage on behalf of SNWA. Under the amended agreement, 

11 



storage for interstate purposes will be determined by the parties on an annual basis and may 

include the storage of Nevada's unused apportionment. Storage will be paid for by Nevada on 

a pay-as-you-go basis. There is no interstate storage planned for Nevada in 2015. Additionally, 

SNWA has not requested the development of intentionally created unused apportionment 

(ICUA) for 2015. 

STORAGE FOR INTER-AMA FIRMING 

The Arizona Municipal Water Users Association (AMWUA) and Southern Arizona Water 

Users Association (SAWUA) have developed a proposal for Inter-AMA water storage and 

firming between the Phoenix and Tucson AMAs. The goal of the proposal is to provide 

additional water management flexibility to CAP M&I subcontractors and the AWBA. 

Under the proposal, a CAP M&I subcontractor in the Phoenix AMA could store a portion 

of its entitlement in the Tucson AMA at a Tucson CAP M&I subcontrator's USF. In-turn, a 

Tucson M&I subcontractor would agree to accept the stored water in the future in lieu 

of a direct delivery to their USF, which would be delivered instead to the Phoenix M&I 

subcontractor's treatment plant. Likewise, the AWBA could store water in the Tucson 

AMA for M&I firming purposes using monies collected in the Phoenix AMA to pay for 

the storage. The stored water is applied toward the firming goal for the Phoenix AMA. 

During shortages, the water would be recovered and used in lieu of a direct delivery in 

the Tucson AMA. The water that would have been delivered to the Tucson AMA will 

instead be delivered to treatment plants in Phoenix, making the cost for recovery 

infrastructure more affordable for all M&I users. 

To evaluate the concepts of the proposal, the City of Phoenix, Tucson Water, and 

Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District (Metro Water) have agreed to 

participate in a pilot phase of the program by storing a relatively small amount of water 

in 2015. If successful, the interested parties may want to proceed with the second phase 

of the project that could include an expansion of the Clearwater and Avra Valley USFs to 

accommodate the additional storage. The potential expansion of these facilities would 

also involve the cooperation of CAWCD for operational and potential funding purposes 

and ADWR for regulatory purposes. 

Although certain CAP M&I subcontractors have expressed an interest in participating in 

2015 with the AWBA in the Inter-AMA firming program as a pilot storage and recovery 

partner, they were not prepared to do so at this time. Therefore, the Plan does not 

include a component to store water for Inter-AMA firming in 2015. A reconsideration by 

M&I subcontractors to participate during the following year could be addressed as an 

amendment to the 2015 Plan. 

PRICING 

In June of 2014, the CAWCD Board approved its water delivery rate schedule for calendar years 

2015/2016. The AWBA rate for recharge is equivalent to the rate for excess M&I water at $179 

per acre-foot, an increase of $13 per acre-foot from the previous year. 

12 



Groundwater pumping costs in the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs vary depending on energy 
sources used and the location of wells, i.e. depth to water. The AWBA cost share in 2015 for the 
GSF partners in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs will remain at $34 per acre-foot. Based on the 
range of groundwater pumping costs and cost shares paid by other partners, it was determined 
the cost share in 2015 for the Tucson AMA will also remain the same at $16 per acre-foot. 
Table 4 reflects the water delivery rate CAWCD will charge the AWBA, the cost share GSF 
operators pay, and the rates the AWBA pays to utilize different USFs. When storing water for 
other than M&I firming and water management purposes at CAWCD recharge facilities, the 
AWBA also pays a facility capital charge. There is no administrative cost component in the 
facility cost because the AWBA pays the CAWCD administrative costs on an annual basis. 

Table 4. 2015 Water and Facility Rates 

Recharge Cost per Acre-foot 

CAWCD delivery rate to AWBA for water storage $179 

Groundwater Savings Facility operator cost share rate
1 

Phoenix and Pinal AMAs $34 

Tucson AMA $16 

Underground Storage Facility rate paid by AWBA 

CAWCD - Phoenix Facilities $9 

CAWCD - Tucson Facilities $15 

Avra Valley Recharge Project $15.91 

Clearwater Facility (CAVSARP/SAVSARP) $16.09 

Granite Reef Underground Storage Project 
2 

$15.00 

Direct Deliveries 

CAWCD rate to AWBA for Southside Replenishment Bank deliveries $179 

1 
This rate is paid directly to CAP by the GSF operators and is not available as revenue to the AWBA. The AWBA's rate for 

delivery of in lieu water is thus reduced to $145/af for intrastate deliveries to the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs and $163/af 

to the Tucson AMA. 
2 
Subject to execution of water storage agreement between Salt River Project and AWBA. 

PURCHASE OF LONG-TERM STORAGE CREDITS 

The AWBA's governing statutes were amended in 2014 to allow the AWBA to purchase 
long-term storage credits after all available excess CAP water supplies have been 
scheduled for storage, thus providing the AWBA with additional flexibility in meeting its 
responsibilities. When purchasing credits, the AWBA may use all funding sources 
authorized for AWBA use, however, the use of ad valorem tax funds for this purpose is 
subject to approval by the CAWCD Board. Additionally, in developing its Plan for the 
following year, the AWBA must confer with the ADWR and CAWCD on the potential 
purchase of credits, particularly if CAWCD is anticipated to be the AWBA's recovery 
agent for those credits. 

13 



For 2015, the AWBA is proposing to purchase credits using ad valorem tax funds 

collected in Maricopa and Pima Counties to make further progress on the CAP M&I 
firming goals for the Phoenix and Tucson AMAs, respectively. Accordingly, the AWBA 
will request that the CAWCD Board reserve funds for this purpose from monies 

collected in each of these counties during the 2015 tax year. The AWBA is presently 
negotiating an agreement to purchase credits in the Tucson AMA at costs equal to that 

of the AWBA's 2015 storage costs and is aiming for similar arrangements in the Phoenix 
AMA. In addition to cost, careful consideration will also be given to the location of the 

credits that are available for sale. The AWBA will also seek opportunities to purchase 
credits in the Phoenix AMA for water management purposes, including credits that can 
be applied toward meeting Indian settlement obligations. 

RECOVERY 

Recovery of AWBA long-term storage credits for firming purposes or for the development of 

ICUA is not anticipated in 2015. 

Staff representatives for ADWR, CAWCD and the AWBA, in cooperation with stakeholders, have 
developed a recovery plan that identifies the duties and responsibilities of the parties as they 

relate to recovery of the AWBA's long-term storage credits and delivery of the water during 
shortage events. While the recovery of AWBA credits for CAP M&I priority subcontract firming 
is not projected until the 2035-2045 planning period, recovery for interstate, Indian CAP NIA 

priority, and on-River domestic supplies may occur sooner. If recovery for firming of Indian CAP 
NIA priority water and Colorado River fourth priority domestic supplies is necessary, potential 
opportunities to provide this firming exist. 

ACCOUNTING 

The AWBA's enabling legislation required the development of an accounting system that 
allows the tracking of all credits accrued by the AWBA and the funding sources from 
which they were developed. ADWR maintains the accounting of the credits, the AWBA 
accounts for the expenditure of the funds utilized from the Water Banking Fund, and 
CAWCD accounts for the expenditure of the ad valorem tax monies and reports that 
expenditure to the AWBA. 

The estimated water delivery and storage costs for the AWBA's 2015 Plan total 
approximately $8.9 million and includes $2.7 for the Phoenix AMA, $1.4 million for the 

Pinal AMA and $3.9 for the Tucson AMA. Additionally, the AWBA anticipates expending 

up to $9.6 million to purchase existing long-term storage credits; up to $6.5 million in 
the Phoenix AMA ($3 million in Maricopa ad valorem tax funds and $3.5 million in 
withdrawal fees) and just under $3.1 million in Pima County ad valorem tax funds in the 
Tucson AMA. Table 5 provides estimates of the funds available to the AWBA, the funds 

to be utilized, the entity that holds the funds, and the credits estimated to accrue to 
those accounts based on the 2015 Plan. 

14 



The 2015 Plan was developed to prioritize storage in the Tucson AMA to make progress on the 

M&I firming goal for that AMA. All funds estimated to be available in 2015 are utilized, 

including $2 million in shortage reparation funds. The remaining water supplies were divided 

between the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs based on funding availability. All available funds are used 

in the Pinal AMA except for $895,000 in withdrawal fees that are reserved to pay for deliveries 

to the Southside Replenishment Bank should the Legislature not appropriate funds for this 

purpose. If monies are appropriated, the withdrawal fees would be available for additional 

storage. The Plan anticipates utilizing all withdrawal fees collected in the Phoenix AMA and a 

portion of the ad valorem tax monies collected in Maricopa County. There are funds and 

storage capacity available to store additional water in the Phoenix AMA if it becomes available. 

Table 5. Funding for 2015 Annual Plan of Operation 

Estimated Funds Available Estimated Funds Utilized Estimated Credits (AF) 
Funding Source 

Water LTSC 

AWB� Cf\WCD
1 

AWB� CAWCD Storage Purchase 

Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA2 $4,700,000 - $4,700,000 - 6,280 16,790 
Pinal AMA3 $1,500,000 - $592,000 - 3,800 0 

Tucson AMA4 $450,000 - $450,000 - 2,180 0 

Four Cent Tax 

Phoenix AMA s $0 $14,000,000 $0 $4,532,000 8,180 14,290 
Pinal AMA $0 $800,000 $0 $800,000 5,130 0 

Tucson AMA 6 $0 $4,500,000 $0 $4,500,000 6,990 14,570 
Other: 

General Fund 7 $895,000 
Phoenix AMA - $0 - 0 0 

Pinal AMA - $895,000 - 0 0 
Tucson AMA - $0 - 0 0 

Shortage Reparations $2,002,000 
Phoenix AMA - $0 0 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 0 0 
Tucson AMA - $2,002,200 9,710 0 

Total Funds Available Total Funds Expended LTS Credits 
$28,847,000 $18,471,200 42,210 I 45,650 

. .  The figures shown are estimates provided by CAWCD staff based on ant1c1pated collections during the 2015 tax year. The amount 
shown for Tucson includes $1.4 million in carry over funds. If utilization is greater than estimated, there may be additional funds 
held by CAWCD that could be made available at the discretion of the CAWCD Board of Directors. 
2 Includes up to $3.5 million toward the potential purchase of credits for water management purposes. 
3 $895,000 in estimated available funds held in reserve to pay for Southside Replenishment Bank deliveries if the Legislature does 
not appropriate funds for that purpose. 
4 Estimates include revenue from CAWCD's capital charge for construction of state demonstration projects when facilities are used 
for interstate purposes and by entities that do not pay the 4C ad valorem tax. 
5 Includes up to $3 million toward the potential purchase of credits for M&I firming.
6 Includes just under $3.1 million toward the potential purchase of credits for M&I firming. 
7 Availability of funds subject to appropriation by the Legislature in 2015. 

15 



Table 6 identifies the progress expected to be made on the AWBA's goals and obligations 

through 2015. Proposed credit purchases were not included in the totals due to the uncertainty 

in the acquisition of those credits. Though if successful, progress on the M&I firming goals for 

the Phoenix and Tucson AMAs could increase to 88% (1,377,787 AF) and 51% (443,488 AF), 

respectively. 

Table 6. Projected Percent of Goals and Obligations Achieved through 2015 

Estimated 
Non-Credit Credits 

Goal 
Location and Objective Funding Source 

· Goal
Goal Accrued 

Achieved 
Achieved (AF) 

CAP M&I Firming Water Storage Tax 

Phoenix AMA (4C Ad valorem) 1,566,000 AF 1,363,497 87% 

Pinal AMA collected by 243,000 AF 212,503 87% 

Tucson AMA County 864,000 AF 428,918 50% 

On-River M&I Firming
1 

General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 96% 

Indian Settlement 

Obligations: 

GRIC Firming 
2 

350,000 AF
3 

105,390 30% 

up to 15 KAF/yr General Fund 0 

Withdrawal Fees 105,390 

Future Settlements - 200,000 AF
3 

0 N/A 

up to 8.7 KAF/yr General Fund 

Withdrawal Fees 

Federal Assistance (SAWRSA)- $3,000,000 34,102 100% 

$3 million General Fund $2,338,171 28,481 

Tucson W/Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services
4 

$31,339 n/o 

Southside Repl. Bank - 15,000 100% 

15 KAF direct delivery General Fund 0 

Pinal W/Fees 15,000 

Groundwater Management
5 

Phoenix AMA Withdrawal Fees 239,214 

Pinal AMA collected by AMA 195,119 

Tucson AMA
6 

99,887 

Other: 

Agreement with 

Shortage Reparations Nevada $8,000,000 $8,000,000 108,604 100% 

Pinal Redirect Credits
7 

N/A 14,125 N/A 

1 
By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-River firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through 

expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the Agreement to Firm dated February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of 

credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term storage subaccount for MCWA in 2005. An additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits have 

been reserved under Exhibit C of the Amended Agreement to Firm, dated December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feet. 

2 
Credits accrued and reserved for firming pursuant to the Agreement between the AWBA and the Gila River Indian Irrigation and 

Drainage District of the Gila River Indian Community for storage of Central Arizona Project Water at a GSF, executed June 16, 2006. 

Credits include 88,313 AF accrued in the Phoenix AMA and 17,077 AF accrued in the Pinal AMA. Credits available for water 

management have been adjusted accordingly. 
3 
Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. 

4 
Expenditures include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FY08 and FY09, respectively. 

5 
Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 4C ad valorem tax revenues to M&I firming if needed to reach firming goals and for 

Indian settlement obligations in the absence of general fund appropriations. 
6 

Includes 234 AF of credits acquired from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to§ 45-841.01. 
7 

Credits accrued from water provided to Pinal AMA GSFs at full cost to the GSF operators. These credits are currently identified for use 

in the Tucson AMA. 

16 



PUBLIC REVIEW AND COMMENT 

AWBA staff presented the Plan to the public in conjunction with the Groundwater Users 

Adivsory Councils (GUAC) meetings for the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs as required by 

statute. Council members supported the Plan and there were no requested changes. 

In the Phoenix AMA, GUAC members had questions regarding the type of long-term storage 

credits the AWBA anticipated purchasing in the Phoenix AMA, specifically if they belonged to 

public or private entities. In response, staff indicated that the type of credit could not be 

identified at this time since staff was not currently engaged in discussions for credit purchase in 

the Phoenix AMA. While there are known private entities that have credits available for sale, 

the AWBA would be interested in any potential opportunities, private or public, so long as 

those credits are reasonably priced and in a location that is suitable for future recovery. 

In the Pinal AMA, there were comments in support of the AWBA's plan to complete the State's 

obligation of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank. There were concerns if the AWBA 

had sufficient funds available to make the final 5,000 acre-feet in deliveries if State General 

Funds are not appropriated for this purpose. 

In the Tucson AMA, members responded positively and expressed appreciation on the AWBA's 

efforts over the last several years to focus storage in that AMA. In addition, Metro Water 

reaffirmed its commitment to become a recovery partner with CAWCD. Specifically, its Board of 

Directors adopted a 10-year Capital Improvement Program, financial plan, and schedule for the 

completion of the AVRP CAP Recharge, Recovery and Delivery System in April of this year. 

Consistent with this planning process, the Board adopted an increase in its Water Resource 

Utilization Fee and approved hiring a consultant to ensure that prior to the purchase of any 

properties necessary to implement the AVRP CAP Recharge, Recovery, and Delivery System, 

which includes recovery well sites, that the properties can be used for their intended purpose. 

Lastly, Metro Water has expressed their interest in becoming a partner for inter-AMA firming in 

2015. 

17 



Agenda Number 10. 

Amended IGA 

• AWBA, CAP and ADWR must confer annually

regarding AWBA plans to purchase long-term

storage credits

• Draft AWBA Plan of Operation to include:

- Target volume of credits to be purchased

- Projected cost of acquiring those credits

- Funding sources and amounts needed from each

source

1 



AWBA Plan of Operation for 2015 

• "AWBA is proposing to purchase credits using

ad valorem tax funds collected in Maricopa

and Pima Counties to make further progress

on the CAP M&I firming goals for the Phoenix

and Tucson AMAs"

• "AWBA is presently negotiating an agreement

to purchase credits in the Tucson AMA at

costs equal to that of the AWBA's 2015

storage costs and is aiming for similar

arrangements in the Phoenix AMA"

AWBA 2015 Credit Purchase Plan 

CAP 

Location Target volume 

of credits to be 

purchased 

Projected cost 

of credits 

Source of 

funds 

Phoenix AMA 14,290 AF $3M 4-cent tax

Tucson AMA 14,740 AF $3.lM 4-cent tax

4 

2 



Amended IGA 

• CAP staff identify for the Board the amount of

4-cent tax revenues, by County, that AWBA is

requesting for the purchase of credits in the 

following year 

• No later than its December meeting, the

Board shall establish the amount of 4-cent tax

revenues, by County, that will be available to

AWBA for the purchase of credits in the

following year

Amended IGA 

• If/when AWBA enters into a credit purchase

agreement, AWBA will provide notice to CAP

and request transfer of 4-cent tax revenues to

Arizona Water Banking Fund

• Notice includes:

- Total price to be paid for credits

- A copy of the purchase agreement

• After receiving notice, CAP will amend its 4-

cent tax resolution and transfer 4-cent tax

revenues to Arizona Water Banking Fund

6 

CAP 

3 



4 



VII. Discussion and Approval of CY 2015 Water Delivery Budget

NOTES: (Action required) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide an overview of the water delivery, recharge, 

and credit purchase budget for the 2015 calendar year 

ACTION: 

Move adoption of the Water Banking Authority water delivery, recharge, and credit 

purchase budget for CY 2015. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
2015 WATER DELIVERY, RECHARGE and CREDIT PURCHASE BUDGET 

REVENUES AVAILABLE for 2015 DELIVERIES 

Withdrawal Fee 1 

Shortage Reparations2 

TOTAL 

Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

1 Projected based on carryover funds plus average collections in recent years. 
2 Provided by SNWA pursuant to Shortage Sharing Agreement 

WATER DELIVERY and RECHARGE RATES 

Water Delivery 

Direct Recharge Facility Rate 

GSF Cost Share Rate 

Recharge Rate (Intrastate) 
Replenishment Bank Rate 

CAWCD - Phoenix Facilities 
Granite Reef Undergound Storage & Recovery Project 

CAWCD - Tucson Facilities 
Avra Valley Recharge Project 

Clearwater Facility - CAVSARP and SAVSARP 

Phoenix and Pinal AMAs 
Tucson AMA 

WATER DELIVERY and RECHARGE 

Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund Appropriation3 

Shortage Reparations 

Total 2015 
3 Assumes the AWBA is successful in securing a general fund appropriation. 

CREDIT PURCHASE 

Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Pinal AMA - SSRB Direct Delivery 

Tucson AMA 

Water 
Delivered 

(AF) 
6,750 
4,090 
2,350 

5,000 

10,440 

28,630 

Credits 
Purchased 

(AF) 
Withdrawal Fee Phoenix AMA 16,786 

4¢ Ad Valorem Tax Utilized4 

Total 2015 
4 Assumes CAWCD Board approves request to reserve 4¢ tax funds for credit purchase. 

PROJECTED AWB FUND CARRYOVER 

Withdrawal Fees 

Total 2015 
5 Withdrawal fees are reserved in the event a oeneral fund aocrooriation is not secured. 

Phoenix AMA 
Tucson AMA 

Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA� 

Tucson AMA 

CENTRAL ARIZONA WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

Estimated water stored and 4-cent tax to be expended by the CAWCD to accrue 
Long-term Storage Credits for the AWBA 

4¢ Ad Valorem Tax Utilized 

Total 2015 

Maricopa County 
Pinal County 
Pima County 

14,290 
14,567 

45,643 

Water 
Delivered 

(AF) 
8,799 
5,516 
7,513 

21,828 

$/AF 
$174 
$145 
$192 

$179 

$192 

$/AF 
$210 

$210 
$210 

$/AF 
$174 
$145 
$192 

$14,698,802 

$4,700,000 
$1,500,000 

$450,000 

$2,002,200 

$8,652,200 

$179 
$179 

$9 
$15 
$15 

$15.91 
$16.09 

$34 
$16 

Total 
$1,175,000 

$592,500 
$450,000 

$895,000 

$2,002.200 

$5,114,700 

Total 
$3,525,000 

$3,000,000 
$3.059., 102 

$9,584,102 

$0 
$907,500 

iQ 

$907,500 

Total 
$1,532,000 

$800,000 
$1,441,000 

$3,773,000 



VIII. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with Commission attorneys concerning:

Draft agreements 

1. IGA between A WBA and the Gila River Indian Community

2. Purchase and Sale Agreement for Long-term Storage Credits

3. Lease Agreement for Transportation through the CAP/SRP

Interconnetion Facility and Storage at GRUSP

4. Water Transportation Agreement between Salt River Valley Water

Users' Association and AWBA, and

Discussion or consultation for legal advice with Commission attorneys concerning 

potential negotiations with CA WCD regarding the A WBA developing Intentially 

Created Surplus in 2016 and any other items on the agenda. 

NOTES: 

The A WBA Commission meeting will resume no earlier than ___ o'clock. 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY AND 

THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY 

This Intergovernmental Agreement ("IGA") is made this ___ day of 

_ _ __ , 20_ between the Arizona Water Banking Authority, an agency of 

the State of Arizona ("AWBA"), and the Gila River Indian Community ("the 

Community"). AWBA and Commmunity are sometimes each referred to in this 

Agreement as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties." 

RECITALS 

A. AWBA, as the agent for the State of Arizona, will satisfy any

State obligations to the Community under the Arizona Water Settlements Act 

(Pub. L. No. 108-451 , 118 Stat. 3478) ("Act") and the Amended and Restated 

Gila River Indian Community Water Rights Settlement Agreement ("Settlement 

Agreement''). 

B. Pursuant to section 205(a) of the Act and paragraph 8.2 of the

Settlement Agreement, the Community and the United States executed Exhibit 

8.2 to the Settlement Agreement, the Amended Central Arizona Project Water 

Delivery Contract between the United States and the Gila River Indian 

Community, on May 15, 2006 ("Exhibit 8.2"). 

C. Exhibit 8.2 amended Contract No. 3-07-30-W0284, dated

October 22, 1992, which was superseded and replaced by Exhibit 8.2. 

D. Exhibit 8.2 allocates 191,200 acre-feet of CAP Indian Priority

Water and 120,600 acre-feet of CAP NIA Priority Water to the Community. 

E. Nothing in Exhibit 8.2 limits the Community's ability to enter into

any agreement with the Arizona Water Banking Authority, or its successor 

agency or entity, in accordance with State law. 

F. As a condition precedent to the enforceability of the Act and the

Amended and Settlement Agreement-, the AWBA and the United States of 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

America, acting through the Secretary of the Interior ("Secretary"), executed the 

Agreement between the Secretary of the Interior and the State of Arizona for the 

Firming of Central Arizona Project Indian Water on November 15, 2007 ("Federal 

Agreement") to carry out the State's obligation under §105 (b)(2)(A) of the Act. 

G. The Federal Agreement recognizes the AWBA may enter into_g

separate contract with the Community for meeting the State's firming obligation 

to the Community and that the Secretary need not be a party to such contract. 

H. The Parties desire to enter into this IGA to establish an annual

process to insure the obligations of the State set forth in Arizona Revised 

Statutes§ 45-2491_are satisfied. 

DEFINITIONS 

In this IGA, unless the context within which used requires otherwise: 

1. Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning as they

have_in the Act, the Settlement Agreement, and in sections of the Arizona 

Revised Statutes ("A.R.S."t as they refer to the firming obligations of the State to 

the Community in Title 45 to the extent they are consistent with the Act
i 

and the 

Settlement Agreement. References hereafter to the A.R.S. shall be to title and 

section numbers without reference to A.R.S.; 

2. "Agreement between the Arizona Water Banking Authority and Gila River

Indian Irrigation and Drainage District of the Gila River India Community for 

Storage of Central Arizona Project Water at a Groundwater Savings Facility'' or 

"Water Storage Agreement" means the agreement dated June 16, 2006, 

amended January 6, 2009. 

3. "ADWR" shall mean the Arizona Department of Water Resources;

4. 

5. "AWBA" means the Arizona Water Banking Authority established by§ 45-

2421 or its successor; 

6. "APO" means the annual operating plan that is adopted pursuant to § 45-

2456; 

2 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

7. "AWBA �Ten-Year Plan" means the ten-year planning projections

contained within the AWBA report pursuant to § 45-2426(8)(6) that is submitted

to the governor, president of the senate and speaker of the house of

representatives on or before July 1 of each year pursuant to § 45-2426;

8. "BOR" shall mean the Bureau of Reclamation;

9. "Central Arizona Project" or "CAP" means the federal reclamation project

authorized by the Colorado River Basin Project Act of 1968, 82 Stat. 885, as

amended;

10. "CAP Indian Priority Water" means that CAP water having an Indian

delivery priority;

11. "CAP M&I Priority Water" means that CAP water having municipal

and industrial delivery priority;

12. "CAP NIA Priority Water" means that CAP water having non-Indian

agricultural delivery priority;

13. "CAWCD" shall mean the Central Arizona Water Conservation District;

.1.1,___"Delivery" means direct physical delivery of water, exchange of

water,- or delivery to a lessee;

44:-15. �Full Order" shall mean the Community's CAP water delivery order that

has not been modified to account for the projected CAP supply - [ Comment [Al]: Not positive of verbage. 

+&:-16. "Gila River Indian Community'' or "Community'' shall mean the

government composed of members of the Pima Tribe and the Maricopa Tribe,

which is organized under Section 16 of the Act of June 18, 1934 (25 U.S.C. §

476);

-+a-; 17. "Long-term Storage Account" or "L TS Account'' means an account

established pursuant to § 45-852.01;

+7-:-18. "Long-term Storage Credit" or "L TS Credit'' means stored water that meets

the requirements of § 45-852.01 and that has been credited to a long-term

storage account;

+& 19. "Reservation" means all lands lying within the exterior boundaries of the

Gila River Indian Reservation;

3 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

.:t--9,-20. "Water Shortage" means available CAP water is insufficient to fully meet 

the demand of the Gila River Indian Community, and their lessees, if any, for that 

CAP NIA Priority Water reallocated to the Community in accordance with the Act; 

2G-c21. "Year" means a calendar year beginning on January 1 and ending on 

December 31 of the same year. 

AGREEMENT 

1. Term

This IGA shall commence, after execution by all of the parties, on the date it is 

filed with the Arizona Secretary of State. This IGA shall terminate December 14, 

2107 and shall be reviewed at least every 25 years. 

2. Firming Obligation

2.1 The AWBA shall, in each Year of this Agreement in which there is 

a Water Shortage, firm up to 15,000 acre-feet of CAP NIA Priority 

Water reallocated to the Community in accordance with the Act, 

upon demand of the Community. To satisfy this firming obligation 

the AWBA shall cause to be delivered to the Community, as 

agreed upon in Section 3, up to 15,000 acre-feet of water in an 

amount determined as follows: 

a) Calculate the total water quantity that would have been

available to the Community as if it had received 15,000 acre

feet of CAP M&I Priority Water allocation with the remainder

of its reallocated CAP NIA Priority wWater keeping its CAP

NIA Priority Water status.

b) Calculate the amount of CAP NIA Priority Water made

available to the Community that year.

c) Subtract the amount calculated in (b) from the amount

calculated in (a) to determine the amount of CAP water the

AWBA shall firm for the Community.

4 

Comment [A2]: KCS: It appears ~20 times, but 
to reduce possible confusion, changing the term to 
"NIA Water Shortage" is worth considering. 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

3. 

2.2 In each -Year of this Agreement -in which there is a Water 

Shortage, -the AWBA's obligation -in section 2.1 above to firm 

CAP NIA Priority Water reallocated -to the Community under the 

Act shall commence at such time as .fill.Y_Community entitlements 

to CAP Indian Priority Water and CAP M&I Priority Water for such 

year are fully exhausted. See Exhibit A, which is attached hereto 

and incorporated herein, for representative calculations of the 

provisions of sections 2.1 and 2.2 abovel. 

Firming Proposal 

3.1 During the development of the AWB/1.'s annual Ten-Year Plan,, the 

AWBA shall evaluate the potential for a Water Shortage during the 

ten-year period as follows: 

a) 

b) 

The AWBA will assume the most recent demand of the 

Community when projecting the Community's demand for 

the ten-year period, unless additional information is provided 

by the Community. 

The AWBA shall consult with the Community, ADWR, 

CAWCD, and BOR when evaluating the potential for a 

Water Shortage during the ten-year period. 

c) The AWBA shall provide the Community with a copy of its

draft Ten-Year Plan at the same time as it is provided to the

AWBA Commission.

3.2 If the projections of the AWBA Ten-Year Plan indicate them will 

beis a likelvhood a Water Shortage is likelv in the third year of the 

planning period, the Community and the AWBA shall meet within 

six (6) months following approval of the Ten-Year Plan to evaluate 

the potential for a firming obligation. See Exhibit C, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein, for graphical representation of 

activities occurring during this time period. 

3.3 If the projections of the AWBA Ten-Year Plan indicate there will 

beis a likelyhood of a Water Shortage is likely in the second year of 

the planning period the Community and the AWBA will undertake 

the following activites, as further described in. See Exhibit C-,-fer 

activities ooourring during this time period: 

5 

Comment [Al]: Inserted to clarify the purpose of 
the representative calculations. 

- Comment [A4 ]: We suggested slightly modifying 
the definition of AWBA Ten-Year Plan (see 
definition 7 above). This change is to conform to the 
revision. 

- Comment [AS]: KCS: Not directly our concern, 
but this seems overly proscriptive. The CAP water 
supply projections used by the A WBA originate with 
CAP. and aren't typically perfonned at the contract 
level. 

Comment [A&]: This is not a substantive change, 
just a different way of expressing the thought. 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

a) The Community and the AWBA shall meet within three (3)

months following approval of the AWBA Ten-Year Plan

identified in Section 3.3 to estimate the volume of CAP NIA

Priority Water the AWBA shall firm and to propose one or

any combination of firming methods identified in Exhibit B,

and any amendments thereto, that may be performed to

satisfy the firming obligation.

b) In the month of December following the activities described

in Section 3.3.a, the AWBA and the Community shall report

to their governing bodies the estimated firming volume,

potential method(s), and any agreements that would be

necessary to implement the firming method(s).

c) In the month of January thereafter, the AWBA and the

Community, based on direction provided by the respective

governing bodies, shall begin developing a preliminary

firming proposal.

d) In the month of March following approval of the AWBA Ten

Year Plan identified in Section 3.3, the AWBA and the

Community shall provide a firming proposal to their

respective governing bodies for review that includes the

estimated volume of CAP NIA Priority Water the AWBA shall

firm and the firming method(s) identified in Exhibit B that

shall be performed to satisfy the firming obligation for that

projected Water Shortage Year.

e) By May 15 thereafter, the AWBA and the Community shall

confirm the firming proposal that will be implemented to

satisfy the firming obligation tor the projected Water

Shortage Year.

3.4 If the AWBA Ten-Year Plan currently in effect projects a Water 

Shortage in the following year, the Community and the AWBA shall 

implement the approved firming proposal according to the following 

schedule. See Exhibit C, for activities occurring during this time 

period: 

6 

Comment (A7]: Consider adding the term "Water 
Shortage Year" as a defined term. 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

4. 

a) By September 1 of the year in which the AWBA Ten-Year
Plan identified in Section 3.4 is approved, the Community
and the AWBA shall confirm in writing the estimated volume
of CAP NIA Priority Water the AWBA shall firm based on
water availability estimates provided by CAWCD in
response to the findings of the BOR's August 24 Month
Study.

b) The AWBA shall incorporate as a component of its
preliminary APO the approved firming proposal that will be
implemented to satisfy the projected firming obligation.

c) The AWBA shall provide its preliminary APO to the
Community at the same time it provides its preliminary APO
to the public for comment.

d) 

e) 

By October 1 of that same Year, the Community shall
submit its ffull eQrder for CAP NIA Priority Water to
CAWCD for the following Year and include in its submittal a
monthly [deli11el)' schedule i.¼r_ig _ the approved firming
proposal that will be implemented to satisfy the projected
firming obligation.

The AWBA shall include in its final APO for the following
Year the volume of CAP NIA Priority Water the AWBA shall
firm based on the Community's ffull eOrder submitted to
CAWCD

.,, 
anG---the approved firming proposal, and CAWCD's

projection of NIA-priority CAP supply for that will be
implemented to satisfy the Water Shortage for that Year.

Amending an Approved Firming Proposal 

4.1 The Community and the AWBA shall notify each other respectively 
of any proposed changes to the approved firming proposal 
included in the APO for the Water Shortage Year. 

4.2 The Community and the AWBA shall amend the approved firming 
proposal included in the APO during a Water Shortage Year if any 
of the following apply: 

7 

- Comment [AB]: Not sure if we had resolution 
regarding orders and monthly delivery schedules. 
Someone had also suggested a definition. 

- Comment [A9]: KCS: Striking it fixes it 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

5. 

a) There are substantive changes to the volume of CAP NIA
Priority Water the AWBA is required to firm under the
approved firming proposal included in the APO.

b) The firming method(s) identified under the approved firming
proposal included in the APO cannot be implemented as
anticipated and/or the parties desire to choose an alternative
method from Exibit B to satisfy the firming obligation for the
Water Shortage Year.

4.3 Any amendments to the approved firming proposal included in the 
AWBA's APO resulting from Section 4.2.b. shall be through mutual 
agreement between the Community and the AWBA. 

4.4 If necessary, the AWBA shall amend its APO for the Year to 
identify any substantive changes to the approved firming proposal. 

4.5 If amendments to the approved firming proposal result in changes 
to the volume of CAP NIA Priority Water available to the 
Community, the Community shall submit a revised water delivery 
schedule to CAWCD and include any modifications to the approved 
firming proposal for that Water Shortage Year .. 

Payments 

5.1 The firming costs and payment responsiblities for Years in which 
the AWBA has a firming obligation shall be based on the individual 
firming methods identified in the firming plan for that Water 
Shortage Year. 

5.2 In any Year in which the AWBA's APO includes deliveries of firmed 
CAP NIA Priority Water delivered to the Community by CAWCD, 
the following shall apply: 

a) -The Community shall pay CAWCD directly the amounts due
for water ordered and delivered puFSuant to the APO Jin the
manner described in Exhibit 8.2.

b) The AWBA shall pay CAWCD the costs for the recovery of
AWBA LTS Credits that exceed the water delivery charges
paid by Indian water users. AWBA payments to CAWCD

8 

Comment [AlO]: Please note that the 
Community will not be able to modify its schedule to 
increase its order dwing the deli very year or after 
October I• of the year preceding the delivery year. 
If lhe Community desires to decrease its water order 
or to direct deliveries to another turnout during the 
delivery year, that would be pennitted (assuming no 
negative impacts on operations.). 

Comment [All]: KCS: It doesn't seem like 
payment to CAWCD should be tied to the Bank's 
APO 



DRAFf 11/20/14 

6. 

7. 

shall be in accordance with the executed recovery 

agreement with CAWCD in that Year. 

5.3 In any Year in which the APO includes the extinguishment of 

AWBA L TS Credits accrued on-Reservation, the Community shall 

pay the costs for groundwater that is pumped on-Reservation in 

lieu of firmed CAP NIA Priority Water delivered to the Community 

by CAWCD. 

Reporting 

6.1 No later than thirty (30) days after the end of each quarter of a 

Water Shortage Year, the Community shall submit to the AWBA a 

quarterly report of firmed CAP NIA Priority Water the Community 

received pursuant to the APO for that Water Shortage Year. 

6.2 No later than thirty (30) days after the end of the Water Shortage 

Year, the Community shall submit a written report that shall serve 

as both the fourth quarterly report and the annual report to the 

AWBA of firmed CAP NIA Priority Water that the Community 

received pursuant to the APO for that Water Shortage Year. 

6.3 In any Year in which the firming proposal includes the recovery of 

AWBA L TS credits, the AWBA shall before the end of that Year, 

distribute L TS Credits to its recovery partner. 

6.4 The AWBA and the Community shall submit any reports that are 

legally or contractually required to carry out the firming proposal 

that is adopted for a Water Shortage Year. 

Water Quality 

In carrying out the firming proposal neither the AWBA nor CAWCD warrant the 

quality of any water furnished under the APO and neither is under any obligation 

to construct or furnish water treatment facilities to maintain or improve the quality 

of any water. The Community waives its right to make a claim against the AWBA 

or CAWCD on account of the quality of water or any changes in water quality 

caused by the commingling of water delivered under the APO with other 1water1. 

8. Notices

9 

- Comment [A12]: This section seems extraneous 
to the purposes of this Agreement, not sure it is
necessary to include it here. 

- Comment [A13]: Not sure this provision is 
necessary. 



DRAFf 11/20/14 

Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this IGA shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered by email to a 

valid email address designated by the Parties, or if mailed first class or delivered, 

to the following address: 

If to the AWBA:

Manager 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

.3550 N. Central Avenue 

Phoenix, Arizona, 85012 

If to the Community: 

Governor and 

General Counsel for the Community 

Gila River Indian Community 

525 West Gu u Ki 

Post Office Box 97 

Sacaton, Arizona 85247 

9. Miscellaneous

9.1 This IGA is solely for the benefit of the Parties and does not create, 

nor shall it be construed to create, rights in any third party unless 

expressly provided herein. No third party may enforce the terms 

and conditions of this IGA. 

9.2 The waiver by either Party of any breach of any term, covenant or 

condition of this IGA shall not be deemed a waiver of any other 

term, covenant or condition, or any subsequent breach of the same 

or any other term, covenant or condition of this IGA. 

9.3 The terms, covenants and conditions of this IGA constitute the 

entire agreement between the Parties, and no understandings of 

obligations not expressly set forth in this IGA shall be binding upon 

them. This IGA may not be modified or amended in any manner 

unless in writing signed by the Parties. 

10 

[ Formatted: French (France) 



DRAFf 11/20/14 

9.4 This IGA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 

applicable laws of the State of Arizona. 

9.5 The Parties to this IGA are hereby notified of section 38-511. 

9.6 The Parties shall obtain and maintain all licenses, permits and 
authority necessary to perform their obligations pursuant to this 
IGA, and shall comply with all applicable state, federal and local 
laws, including but not limited to those regarding unemployment 
insurance, disability insurance and worker's compensation. This 
IGA does not relieve either party from any obligation or 
responsibility imposed upon it by law. 

9.7 Neither party shall be considered an officer, employee or agent of 

the other. No monitoring or supervisory responsibility over the 

other party's activities arises on the part of the other arises or as a 

result of, or pursuant to, this IGA other than as expressly provided 

herein. 

9.8 The provisions of this IGA are severable to the extent that if any 

provision is held unenforceable under applicable law, the remaining 

provisions of the IGA shall remain in effect. 

9.9 All books, accounts, reports, files and other records relating to this 

IGA shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection and audit 

by the State of Arizona and the AWBA for five (5) years after 

completion of the IGA. Such records shall be produced at such 

state offices as are designated by the State of Arizona and the 

AWBA. 

9.10 Each Party to this IGA is independently responsible in the event of 

its own negligence. Neither Party agrees to indemnify the other 

Party. 

9.11 The Parties shall attempt to resolve all claims, disputes, 

controversies, or other matters in question between the Parties 

arising out of, or relating to, this IGA ("Dispute") promptly, 

equitably, and in a good faith manner. Any Dispute arising out of 

this Agreement are subject to arbitration to the extent required by 

A.R.S. §12-133 and §12-1518. The prevailing Party in such 

arbitration may seek enforcement of such award in any court of 

competent jurisdiction. Each Party agrees to submit to the 

11 



DRAFT 11/20/14 

jurisdiction of any such court solely for purposes of the 
enforcement of such arbitration decision and for no other purpose. 

9.12 The waiver of any breach or default of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any succeeding 
breach of the same or other provisions; nor shall any delay or 
omission on the part of either Party to exercise or avail itself of any 
right, power or privilege that it has or may have hereunder operate 
as a waiver of any breach or default by the other Party. 

In Witness of this IGA, the Parties affix their official signatures below, 

acknowledging execution of this document on the __ day of 

_ _ _____ , 20XX. 

Attest: 

By: ______ _ _ _ __ 

Clifford A. Neal, Secretary 

Approved as to form: 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

By:---------

Michael J. Lacey, Chair 

Gila River Indian Community 

By: _ _ _ _ _____ _ 

Governor 

12 



DRAFr 11/20/14 

By: _________ _ 

General Counsel for the Gila River Indian Community 

EXHIBIT A 

13 



DRAFf 11/20/14 

EXHIBIT B 

Methods for Firming Gila River Indian Community CAP NIA Priority Water 

Described below are firming methods identified by the Community and the AWBA 
that may be implemented when the AWBA has a firming obligation to the 
Community as calculated in Exhibit A. The firming methods are not listed by 
priority but reflect various options currently available. This Exhibit may be 
amended as needed to include additional firming methods agreed upon by the 
Community and the AWBA. The Community and the AWBA recognize that the 
parties may enter into future agreements to facilitate the State's obligation to firm 
CAP NIA Priority Water for the Community. Potential agreements have been 
identified under each method. 

1. Recovery of AWBA L TS Credits Accrued Off-Reservation - AWBA L TS
credits accrued off-Reservation are used to firm CAP NIA Priority Water
ordered by the Community. L TS Credits may be recovered the following
ways:

a) CAWCD recovers AWBA L TS Credits accrued off-Reservation and
delivers firmed NIA Priority CAP water to the Community directly or by
exchange. A recovery agreement between the AWBA and CAWCD is
required.

i. The Community is responsible for paying the water delivery
charges to CAWCD.

ii. The AWBA is responsible for paying CAWCD recovery costs that
exceed the water delivery charges paid by Indian water users.

b) AWBA L TS Credits accrued in the vicinity of the Reservation are
extinguished by the AWBA and the Community pumps an equivalental
amount of groundwater as "firmed water" which is accepted by the
Community as water delivered to meet an equivalent portion of the



r 

DRAFf 11/20/14 

State's firming obligation for that Year . .- IJj,9 _Qq_F!_11_11_u_nlty JQC;IL!c_e_s its _ 
order for CAP NIA Priority V\/ater for that Year by the volume of "firmed 
water" that will be pumped. The Community is responsible for paying 
for the groundwater pumped in lieu of its water delivery. 

�Existing AWBA L TS Credits Accrued On-Reservation - In accordance 
with Section 11.1 of the Water Storage Agreement, AWBA LTS Credits 
accrued from water stored pursuant to AWBA Water Storage Permit Nos. 
73-211277.0100 and 73-211277.0200 are extinguished by the AWBA and
accepted by the Community as water delivered to meet an equivalent
portion of the State's firming obligation for that Year. The water deli•.iered
reduces on an acre foot per acre foot basis the State's total firming
obligation to the Community.

L_ • 

Potential Future AWBA L TS Credits Accrued On-Reservation - AWBA 
L TS Credits accrued from water stored on Reservation at potential future 
storage facilities may be extinguished and accounted for as described in 
method No. 2 above. This would require the Community to hold an 
underground storage facility permit issued by ADWR and the AWBA to 
hold a water storage permit issued by ADWR for storage at the facility. 
Additionally, the AWBA and the Community would need to enter into a 
water storage agreement for storage at the facility. 

3. AWBA Non-traditional Storage On-reservation - "Firming credits"
accrued by the AWBA pursuant to an agreement with the Community for
deliveries of water to the Community during non-shortage years are debited
from the total volume of firming credits held in a "Firming Account". The
Community reduces its order for CAP NIA Priority Water and pumps an
equal volume of groundwater.

Comment [A14]: KCS· This isn't "Recovery"; 
should be a new #2 "Extinguishmeotof AWBA LTS 
Credits Accrued Off-Reservation" 

- Formatted: Indent: Left: O", Hanging: 0.38", 
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 
3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned 
at: l" + Indent at: 1.25" 





PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

FOR 

LONG TERM STORAGE CREDITS 

This Purchase and Sale Agreement is made this __ day of --� 2015, (the 
"Effective Date"), between the Arizona Water Banking Authority ("the Water Bank", or 
"Bank"), an authority established under Chapter 14, Title 45 of the Arizona Revised Statutes, 
added by Law 1996, Ch. 308, § 16, effective April 30, 1996, the City of Tucson ("Tucson"), a 
Charter City and political subdivision of the State of Arizona. 

RECITALS 

Water Bank 

A. The Water Bank desires to purchase Long-Term Storage Credits developed by Tucson
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 45, Chapter 3.1, for the benefit of meeting the Bank's 
storage goals. 

B. Tucson is willing to sell and transfer certain Long-Term Storage Credits to Water Bank
under the price, terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLEl 

DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Agreement, the following terms, when capitalized, shall mean: 

1.1 "ADWR" means the Arizona Department of Water Resources. 

1.2 "Agreement" means this Purchase and Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits. 

1.3 "Annual Long-Term Storage Credit Volume" means for any given year during the term of 
this Agreement, the annual volume of Long-Term Storage Credits to be acquired by the Water 
Bank in that year as indicated in the Annual Notice submitted by Water Bank to Tucson pursuant 
to Article 3 .1 below. 

1.4 "Annual Purchase Price" means the annual purchase price for Long-Term Storage Credits 
to be transferred pursuant to the terms of this Agreement as calculated pursuant to Article 2.3 
below. 

1.5 "Long-Term Storage Credit" is as defined in Arizona Revised Statutes§ 45-802.01(11). 

{A0072449.DOC/} 



r 
1.6 "Long-Term Storage Credit Transfer Form" is a form, approved by ADWR, to effectuate 
the assignment of Long-Term Storage Credits, as defined in Arizona Revised Statutes § 45-
854.01 (B), and more specifically described in Article 3 below. 

1.7 "Tucson" means the City of Tucson. 

1.8 "Tucson's Long-Term Storage Account" means the account established pursuant to 
Arizona Revised Statutes § 45-852.01 in Tucson's name, account No. 70-411111. 

1.9 "Water Bank" or "Bank" means the Arizona Water Banking Authority. 

ARTICLE2 

PURCHASE OF LONG-TERM STORAGE CREDITS 

2.1 Sale and Purchase. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, beginning in 
2015, each year during the term of this Agreement, Tucson agrees to sell, transfer and assign and 
Water Bank agrees to purchase, accept and pay for no more than 15,000 acre-feet of Long-Term 
Storage Credits. The total volume of Long-Term Storage Credits that Tucson agrees to sell and 
Water Bank agrees to purchase during the term of this Agreement is 45,000 acre-feet. 

2.3 Annual Purchase Price. The Annual Purchase Price ("AP") for the Long-Term Storage 
Credits to be transferred pursuant to this Agreement will vary from year to year and shall be 
based on components of the Central Arizona Project published rate schedule. The Annual 
Purchase Price for the Long-Term Storage Credits to be transferred in 2015 shall be multiplied 
by the Annual Long-Term Storage Credit Volume for 2015. The Annual Purchase Price for the 
Long-Term Storage Credits to be transferred pursuant to this Agreement in each year after 2015, 
shall be calculated as follows: 

AP= l[(CAP Fixed OM&R Delivery Charge*+ CAP Pumping Energy GhafgeRate 1 * + 
CAP Undergrom1d 'Nater Storage O&M M&I Long-term Subcontract Capital Charge�*-+ 
TW Facility Fee) x 1.07] + TW Facilitv Fee I x Annual Long-Term Storage Credit 
Volume for the applicable year 

where 

AP = the Annual Purchase Price for Long-Term Storage Credits transferred in the 
applicable year 

TW Facility Fee=the Annual Facility Fee for Water Bank Storage in Tucson Water 
Recharge Facilities, set at $16.09 for 2015, which increases at the fixed rate of ::::-J 
percent per year. 

* As published in CAP's Annual Firm Rate Schedule for the year in which the credits
are transferred.

{A0072449.DOQ} 

Page 2 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



2.4 Type of Water. It is the intent of the parties that all Long-Term Storage Credits 
purchased and sold under this Agreement shall retain the identity of the source of water used to 
generate such Long-Term Storage Credits. 

2.5 Long-Term Storage Credits. 

2.5.1 The Long-Term Storage Credits to be sold by Tucson are from Tucson's Long
Term Storage Account and shall be transferred to Water Bank's Account(s) subject to the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement. 

2.5.2 The Long-Term Storage Credits to be transferred to Water Bank must have been 
accrued by Tucson at underground storage facilities located in the Tucson Active Management 

Area. 

2.5.2 The Long-Term Storage Credits to be sold by Tucson were stored, or will be 
stored, at the underground storage facilities, under the ADWR Facility Permit and ADWR 

Storage Permits set forth on Exhibit A. The Parties acknowledge that Exhibit A may be 
amended from time to time during the term of this Agreement to reflect amendments to Tucson's 
existing underground storage facility permits or to add new permitted underground storage 
facilities. Tucson, in its sole discretion, may determine the origin of the Long-Term Storage 
Credits it wishes to transfer to Water Bank in any particular year by specifying in writing the 

Facility Permit Number where the credits were accrued and the Water Storage Permit Number 
authorizing such storage. 

2.5.3 The Water Bank agrees that any Long Term Storage Credits acquired pursuant to 
this Agreement will be used by the Water Bank for the purpose of meeting its statutory 
obligations to protect Arizona municipal and industrial ("M&I") water users against future water 
shortages on the Colorado River and disruptions of operation of the Central Arizona Project, as 
established in A.RS. Chapter 14, Title 45, and will not be sold to any third party. 

2.5.4. Tucson agrees to work in good faith with the Water Bank and the Central Arizona 

Project to wheel Water Bank supplies to other M&I water users who have "wheeling" or other 
arrangements with Tucson to store and deliver M&I water using Tucson infrastructure. 

ARTICLE3 

TIME AND MANNER OF TRANSFER 

3.1 Annual Notice. On or before February 15 of each year thereafter during the term of this 
Agreement, Water Bank shall notify Tucson of the volume of Long-Term Storage Credits it 
desires to acquire from Tucson during such year (the "Annual Long-Term Storage Credit 

Volume") 

3.2 Long-Term Storage Credit Transfer Form. On or before February 15, 2015, and on or 
before February 15 of each year thereafter during the term of this Agreement, Tucson and Water 
Bank shall complete, sign and deliver the Long-Term Storage Credit Transfer Form to evidence 

the transfer of the Annual Long-Term Storage Credit Volume for that year. A copy of the Long-

{ A0072449 .DOC/} 

Page 3 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



Term Storage Credit Transfer Form is attached as Exhibit B to this Agreement. If ADWR adopts 
a different Long-Term Storage Credit Transfer form, then the Parties shall utilize that form 

instead. On or before February 15, 2015, and on or before February 15 of each year thereafter 
during the term of this Agreement, Water Bank shall submit fully executed Long-Term Storage 
Credit Transfer Form to ADWR. 

3.3 Additional Actions and Documentation. Water Bank shall pay any administrative fees 
established by ADWR to effectuate the transfer of Long-Term Storage Credits into Water Bank's 

Account(s). The parties shall cooperate to take such further actions and execute such further 
documents as may be determined by either party to be necessary or advisable in order to 

complete the transfer of the Long-Term Storage Credits contemplated by this Agreement. 

ARTICLE4 

COMPLETION OF DELIVEY AND PAYMENT 

4.1 Completion of Delivery. Delivery of the Annual Long-Term Storage Credit Volume for 

a particular year shall be deemed complete when ADWR notifies Water Bank in writing that it 
has received and accepted the Long-Term Storage Credit Transfer Form and intends to transfer 
Long-Term Storage Credits equal to the Annual Long-Term Storage Credit Volume for such 

year from Tucson's Long-Term Storage Account to Water Bank's Account(s). 

4.2 Payment. Each year during the term of this Agreement, within 30 (thirty) days after 
receiving written notification from ADWR that it has received and accepted the Long-Term 
Storage Credit Transfer Form and intends to transfer the Annual Long-Term Storage Credit 
Volume to Water Bank Account(s), Water Bank shall pay Tucson the Annual Purchase Price as 
calculated pursuant to Article 2.3 above. Provided however, each year during the term of this 
agreement, Water Bank shall pay Tucson the Annual Purchase Price as calculated pursuant to 
Article 2.3 above, no later than June 30 of the applicable year. 

ARTICLES 

REJECTION OR INVALIDATION OF 

TRANSFER 

If ADWR, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 45-854.0l (C), rejects or invalidates any 
transfer or assignment of Long-Term Storage Credits made hereunder before Water Bank has 
paid for such Long-Term Storage Credits, Water Bank shall not be obligated to pay for the 
number of Long-Term Storage Credits affected by such rejection or invalidation. If such 
rejection or invalidation occurs after payment has been made by Water Bank, Tucson shall 

refund an amount equal to the number of Long-Term Storage Credits affected by such rejection 
or invalidation times the price per acre-foot for the affected Long-Term Storage Credits, as such 

price is established in Article 2.3 above. Tucson shall refund such amount within 20 (twenty) 
business days after either Water Bank or Tucson receives any notice of rejection or invalidation 
from ADWR. Water Bank shall transfer and assign back to Tucson the number of credits 

affected by any such rejection or invalidation. Tucson's obligation to refund any payments under 
this Article 5 shall expire thirty (30) days after ADWR has issued a non-appealable final agency 
decision approving the transfer and assignment of the Long-Term Storage Credits into Water 

{ A0072449.DOC/} 

Page 4 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



Bank Account(s). The Parties' rights and obligations under this Article 5 shall remain in full 
force and effect, and shall survive termination of this Agreement for purposes of addressing a 
circumstance where ADWR rejects or invalidates any transfer of Long-Term Storage Credits 
made hereunder. 

ARTICLE6 

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM 

This Agreement shall be effective as of the date set forth in the introductory paragraph of this 
Agreement (the "Effective Date"). The initial term of this Agreement is three (3) years. 

ARTICLE7 

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

7 .1 Default. The occurrence of any of the following events constitutes an event of default 
by a party to this Agreement: 

7.1.1 The failure of either party to perform any term, covenant, or condition of this 
Agreement, if that failure continues for thirty days following the receipt of written notice from 
the other party. 

7.1.2 (i) The filing by or against either party of a petition to have the party adjudged a 
bankrupt or a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy 
(unless, in the case of a petition filed against a party, the same is dismissed within 60 days); (ii) 
the making by a party of any general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) the appointment 
of a trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of the party's assets, when 
possession is not restored to the party within 60 days; or (iv) the attachment, execution, or other 
judicial seizure of substantially all of a party's assets, where such seizure is not discharged 
within 60 days. 

7.2 Remedies. If an event of default occurs, the non-defaulting party may immediately 
terminate this Agreement by written notice to the defaulting party and/or may pursue any other 
rights available to it in law or equity. The obligation of the defaulting party to pay any amounts 
due but unpaid as of the date of termination under this provision shall survive such termination. 

ARTICLES 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

8.1 Interpretation. This Agreement is governed by and must be construed and interpreted in 
accordance with and in reference to the laws of the State of Arizona, without regard to its 
conflicts of laws provisions. Any action to resolve any dispute regarding this Agreement shall be 
taken in a state court of competent jurisdiction located in Maricopa County, Arizona. 

8.2 Tucson's Warranty of Title. Tucson warrants that to the best of its actual knowledge it 
has good and marketable title to the Long-Term Storage Credits that are the subject of this 
Agreement and agrees to convey marketable title to such Long-Term Storage Credits free and 

{ A0072449.DOC/} 

Page 5 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



clear of all liens and encumbrances. Tucson shall warrant and defend title against all persons 
claiming by or through Tucson and no other. 

8.3 Amendments. This Agreement may be modified, amended or revoked only by the 

express written agreement of the parties hereto. 

8.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
and no understandings or obligations not expressly set forth in this Agreement are binding upon 
the parties. 

8.5 Waiver. No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver unless such 
right or remedy is waived in writing signed by the waiving party. A waiver by any party of any 
right or remedy hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of any other right or remedy, 
whether pursuant to the same or a different term, condition or covenant. 

8.6 Captions. All captions, titles, or headings in this Agreement are used for the purpose of 
reference and convenience only and do not limit, modify, or otherwise affect any of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

8.7 Rules. Regulations and Amendment or Successor Statutes. All references in this 
Agreement to the Arizona Revised Statutes include all rules and regulations promulgated by 
ADWR under such statutes and all amendment statutes and successor statutes, rules, and 
regulations to such statutes, rules, and regulations. 

8.8 Notices. Except as otherwise required by law, any notice given in connection with this 
Agreement must be in writing and must be given by personal delivery, overnight delivery, 
facsimile, or United States certified or registered mail. Any such notice must be addressed to the 
appropriate party at the following address ( or at any other address as a party may hereafter 
designate by written notice given as required by this paragraph): 

WATER BANK: 

For delivery and U.S. Mail use: 

c/o Chairperson 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central A venue, 2nd Floor 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

TUCSON: 

For delivery and 
for U.S. Mail use: 

c/o Water Director 

{A0072449.DOC/} 

Page 6 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



310 W. Alameda 
Tucson, Arizona 85726-7210 

Notice is deemed to have been given on the date on which notice is personally delivered, 
delivered to an overnight delivery service, transmitted by facsimile or mailed. Notice is deemed 
to have been received on the date on which the notice is actually received or delivery is refused. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have executed this Agreement 
as of the date first set forth above. 

Water Bank: 

TUCSON: 

{A0072449.DOC/) 

WATER BANK 

By: __________ _____ _ 

Its: Chairperson 

ATTEST: _______ _ _ ___ _ 

THE CITY OF TUCSON 

By:--------------
J onathan Rothschild 

Its: Mayor 

ATTEST: ____________ _ 
Roger Randolph 
City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Principal Assistant City Attorney 

Page 7 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



r 

EXHIBIT A 

to 

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 

Facility Name 

CAVSARP 

SAVSARP 

{A0072449.DOC/} 

LONG-TERM STORAGE CREDITS 

ADWR Facility 

Permit No. 

ADWR Water Credits (AF) Year(s) 

Storage Permit 

No. 

71-591928.0001 73.591925.0000

Earned 

Water 

Source 

CAP 

CAP 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for Long-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City o_{Tucson 

Page 8 of 9 



EXHIBIT B 

to 

Purchase and Sale Agreement for Long Term Storage Credits 

ADWR LONG-TERM STORAGE CREDIT TRANSFER FORM A.R.S. § 45-854.01 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
Water Man1aemnt SectlN 

3550 Nol1h Ccnml Ave, Phomi11, Arizona 85012 
Talcpboae(602) 771-8585 

LONG-TERM STORAGE CUPIT 
TRANSFER FORM A.R.S. f 45-854.tl 

IFOR SELLER! 

Nmne of Setler 

Contac:t Persoo/rdephone Number 

Mailing Add.,_ 

City/State/Zip 

fu (602) 771-8689 

fer Official Use Only 

DATE RECEIVED; ____ _ 

LDn,t-Tam Stonge Account No. 

Facility Permit Number (where source wau:r was sron,d) 

Water Storage Pennlt Number (authority to store 80\IRC 
wata") 

N■mberol'loat-Cenll ttwace credlts (la �re-feet) b'ulf'..-red lly type(s) of water ull ynr cretllb were earaed. 

Type: ------�fcct. ___ ymr camcd ___ _ 
Type: acn>fc:ct )Ur camcd ___ _ 

(FORBUVERI 

Nameof811yer 

Contact PerscnfTelephonc Number 

Mailme Address 

City/StetdZip 

Long-Tenn Storage Aa:oimt No. (if any} 

If the transfer includes !mg-tam storage credits earned 
froln the stotage of Central Arizona Project (CAP) water in 
ID Active M11111ement A.a (AMA), pl.cue state: 

I. The dak ofBuya-'s formation (ifBuyer is a legal
entity): _______ -'

2. The amount of 8JOU!ldwat.er withdrawn by Buya
in the AMA during the calendar year that the
credits wac earned:

a. The groundwater riaht numbcr(s) lhc Buyer 
withdrew the groundwater pur,uant ID:

Pllnuant ta A.R.S. f 45-854.ll(C), die dlreetor ol' the AJ'bJetia Dtpartment fl Water RH04lrffll may rejllltt and la"111hlate 
aay wipment ofloas-tenn stonp credits I• wllidl tlie mred water _.Id not llaw Did the re11■lremmtsfor '-I-term
_......, cntlltl a PNMrilN 11,y A.R.S.145-l(JJ.Ol tfth ... ip.e luMI ltond tbs,,..., 

The undersigned hereby certify, wider pc:nalty of pcrjllry, tbal the infofflllltion c:onlainecl in this rq,ort is. to die best of cheir 
knowledge end belie( coma and complcu: and dial they are mhorilJCd to si111 on behalf of the party for whom thdr si111a1UrC 
appears. 

AuthQrizcd Sianature for Seller DATE 

Title 

{ A0072449 .DOC/} 

Authorized Si� for Bu)'c:r- DATE 

Tide 

Page 9 of 9 

Purchase & Sale Agreement for umg-Term Storage Credits 
Water Bank and City of Tucson 



LEASE AGREEMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION 

THROUGH THE CAP/SRP INTERCONNECTION 

FACILITY AND STORAGE OF WATER AT THE 

GRANITE REEF UNDERGROUND STORAGE PROJECT 

1. PARTIES:

This Le a s  e Agreement is made and entered into the __ day of

_______ , 20_ by and between the Salt River Valley Water

Users' Association, hereinafter referred to as "Association", and the Arizona

Water Banking Authority (AWBA)

2. RECITALS:

2.1 Association and Participants to the Granite Reef Underground Storage 

Project Intergovernmental Agreement dated February 26, 1993 have 

constructed and Association is responsible for operating the Granite 

Reef Underground Storage Project (GRUSP), an underground storage 

facility that is located in the East Salt River sub-basin of the Phoenix 

Active Management Area in Maricopa County. 

2.2 Association, on behalf of the owners thereof, operates the CAP/SRP 

Interconnection Facility (CSIF) which interconnects the CAP Canal with 

Association's Water Delivery System for the delivery of water from the 

CAP Canal operated by the Central Arizona Water Conservation District 

(CAWCD). 

2.3 Association, on behalf of the GRUSP Participants, and in accordance 

with the GRUSP IGA and GRUSP Annual Operations Procedures, is 

authorized to broker leases to other entities for the Annual Lease 

Capacity at GRUSP. 

2.4 ADW R has issued Association a Constructed Underground Storage 

Facility Permit (Permit No. 71-516371.0001) for GRUSP. The permit 

authorizes the underground storage of a maximum of 93,000 acre-feet 

per year for a maximum of 1 .23 million acre-feet of water in storage at 

any time. 

2.5 AWBA desires to store CAP water at GRUSP and Association agrees 

to make available storage capacity at GRUSP for such storage and 

CSIF capacity, in accordance with the provisions of this Lease 



r 
Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the payments to be 

paid by the AWBA, and the covenants and agreements contained in this 

Lease Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, 

Association and AWBA agree as follows: 

3. DEFINITIONS:

As used in this L e a s e Agreement, the following terms, when 

capitalized, have the following meanings: 

3.1 ADWR: The Arizona Department of Water 
Resources 

3.2 Association: The Salt River Valley Water Users' Association 

3.3 CAP (CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT): The water delivery works of 

the CAP including, but not limited to, the CAP canal, its turnout 

structures and associated measuring devices. 

3.4 CSIF (CAP/SRP Interconnection Facility): The facility located adjacent 

to the Granite Reef Diversion Dam which interconnects the CAP 

aqueduct with the Association Water Delivery System and the Salt River 

Bed. 

3.5 CSIF IGA: The agreement among the Association, the Salt River 

Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, Chandler, 

Gilbert, Glendale, Mesa, Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale and Tempe dated 

July 26, 1989, as subsequently amended or supplemented. 

3.6 GRUSP (Granite Reed Underground Storage Project): The underground 

storage facilities generally described in Exhibit A of the Agreement. 

3.7 GRUSP Annual Operations Procedures: The operational planning 

document that outlines how each Participant and Association as 

Operating Agent shall implement annual scheduling and leasing. 

3.8 GRUSP IGA: The agreement among the Association, the Salt River 

Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District, Chandler, Gilbert, 

Mesa, Phoenix, Scottsdale, and Tempe dated February 26, 1993. 

3.9 Operating Agent: The Association, in accordance with the GRUSP IGA 

or CSIF IGA. 

3.10 Operating Capacity: The monthly amount of water in AF that can be 

physically stored in the GRUSP as determined by the Operating Agent. 

3.11 Participants: Any one or more of the Parties to the GRUSP IGA which 



owns Storage Entitlement. 

3.12 Party/Parties: Either one or, in the plural, both parties to this Lease 

Agreement 

3.13 Permit: The Constructed Underground Storage Facility Permit issued by 

the ADWR for GRUSP, Permit No. 71-516371.0001 

3.14 Storage Capacity: The maximum amount of water in AF that can be 

physically stored in GRUSP each calendar year in compliance with the 

facility permit issued by ADWR, or additional document authorizing the 

Participants to store water at GRUSP. 

3.15 Storage Entitlement: A Participant's individual percentage of ownership 

in the Storage Capacity of GRUSP, as set forth in Exhibit C of the 

GRUSP IGA, as revised. 

3.16 Uncontrollable Forces: Any cause beyond the control of the Party 

affected, including but not restricted to failure of or threatened failure of 

facilities, flood, earthquake, storm, fire, lightning, epidemic, war, riot, civil 

disturbance or disobedience, labor dispute, labor or material shortage, 

sabotage, restraint by court order or public authority, and action or non

action by or failure to obtain the necessary authorizations or approvals 

from any governmental agency or authority not a Party to this 

Agreement, which by exercise of due diligence such Party could not 

reasonably have been expected to avoid and which by exercise of due 

diligence it shall be unable to overcome. Nothing contained herein shall 

be construed so as to require a Party to settle any strike or labor dispute 

in which it is involved. Any Party rendered unable to fulfill any of its 

obligations under this Agreement by reason of an Uncontrollable Force 

shall give prompt written notice of such fact to the other Party and shall 

exercise due diligence to remove such inability. 

3.17 Water Delivery System: The canal system, including canals, gates, and 

measuring devices, but excluding laterals and drain ditches, operated 

and maintained by Association to deliver water. 

4. SCOPE:

This Lease Agreement is limited to (1) the storage of AWBA water by the

Association at the GRUSP for the benefit of the AWBA and (2) transportation

of AWBA water through the CSIF. Additionally, transportation of AWBA water

in the Association Water Delivery System will require a separate Water

Transportation Agreement between AWBA and Association.



5. TERM OF AGREEMENT:

This Lease Agreement shall become effective when executed by both Parties

and shall remain in effect for ___ year(s) unless the Parties agree in

writing to extend the term or unless it is sooner terminated or canceled in

accordance with the terms of this Lease Agreement.

6. CONDITIONS RELATING TO STORAGE AND USE OF CSIF:

6.1 The transportation and storage of water under this Lease Agreement is 

conditioned on the following: 

6.1.1 Transportation of AWBA water through the CSIF and the Association 

Water Delivery System, and storage of AWBA water in GRUSP is 

subject to the CSIF, Association, and GRUSP operating practices, 

respectively. 

6.1.2 All storage of AWBA water shall be consistent with the GRUSP IGA, 

Arizona water law and with federal law applicable to GRUSP. 

6.1.3 AWBA water made available pursuant to this Lease Agreement shall be 

stored by the Association only at GRUSP. 

6.1.4 AWBA shall obtain a water storage permit from ADWR authorizing it to 

store AWBA's water at GRUSP. 

6.1.5 Association's storage of AWBA's water at GRUSP shall, at all times, 

comply with the Permit. Association shall be responsible for filing 

annual reports as required by the Permit. Association shall promptly 

notify AWBA of any changes or modifications to the Permit that 

would affect AWBA's rights under this L e  a s  e Agreement. If the 

Permit is canceled or expires for any reason, AWBA may terminate this 

Lease Agreement. 

7. SCHEDULING AND OPERATION

7.1 Delivery of water to and from GRUSP and CSIF is subject to the 

GRUSP IGA, CSIF IGA, this Lease Agreement and the GRUSP and 

CSIF operating procedures 

7.2 Discrepancies between scheduled and actual water flows shall be 

resolved by the Parties in a mutually agreeable manner. 

7.3 On or before September 15 of each year during_ the term of this Lease 

Agreement, Association shall notify AWBA of a proposed amount of 

GRUSP capacity available to AWBA the following year. 

8. WATER DELIVERY AND STORAGE RATE:

8.1 G RUSP Storage Rate: Each year under the term of this Lease 



Agreement, Association shall establish a per acre-foot GRUSP rate 

("Annual GRUSP Storage Rate") for the use of GRUSP storage capacity 

for the following year based on actual operation and maintenance 

expenses. 

8.2 CSIF Use Rate: Each year under the term of this Lease Agreement, 

Association shall establish a per-acre foot CSIF rate ("CSIF Use Rate") for 

the use of CSIF capacity for the following year. 

8.3 SRP will provide notice of the GRUSP Storage Rate and CSIF Use Rate 

no later than September 15th each year during the term of this agreement. 

9. OPERATING AGENT:

9.1 The Association shall have the sole discretion in determining whether a 

curtailment or stoppage of water flows to or from CSIF or to GRUSP is 

made necessary by circumstances existing at any time; and shall assume 

no liability to AWBA for such curtailment or stoppage. 

9.2 The Association shall retain sole responsibility and authority for decisions 

relating to CSIF and GRUSP operating and maintenance practices, 

including maintenance scheduling and the selection of periods when 

maintenance will be done. 

9.3 Association shall operate CSIF and GRUSP in a manner consistent with 

the CSIF IGA and GRUSP IGA. Whenever practicable, the Association 

shall inform AWBA ninety (90) days in advance of any matter which may 

substantially affect CSIF, GRUSP or the rights of AWBA, and of any 

actions to be taken by Association related thereto. 

10. DESTRUCTION/RECONSTRUCTION OF GR USP:

In the event of destruction of all or part of GR USP, Association may repair

or reconstruct GRUSP, but Association shall not be obligated to do so.

11. WATER MEASUREMENT AND ACCOUNTING:

11.1 Water measurement and accounting for water stored at GRUSP shall be

done in accordance with Section 16 of the GRUSP IGA. 

11.2 Water measurement and accounting for water transported through the 

CSIF shall be done in accordance with Section 16 of the CSIF IGA. 

11.3 Association shall determine evaporation losses representative of the 

conditions at or near GRUSP using the method indicated in the Permit 

or using actual measurements, when available. Any other losses in 

GRUSP shall be calculated using generally accepted engineering 

practices. 



11.4 Association shall prepare a monthly water accounting report of water 

stored at GRUSP for AWBA. The report shall include the daily 

amount of water stored and the losses calculated as described in 

this Section. 

11.5 Association shall provide ADW R with water accounting reports for 

GRUSP as required by the Permit. 

11.6 Association shall provide AWBA copies of GRUSP annual reports 

submitted to ADW R. 

12. WATER QUALITY:

12.1 Nothing in this Lease Agreement shall be construed so as to require that

the Association receive or transport water from any source when the 

Association reasonably determines that such receipt or transportation is 

likely to result in a violation of then existing federal, state or local laws or 

regulations regarding water quality. 

12.2 AWBA shall release, hold harmless and indemnify the Association from 

and against all losses, liability, claims, injury or damage it incurs or 

suffered by third parties resulting from water quality degradation caused 

by the comingling of AWBA water in the Association Water Delivery 

System for the purpose of transporting such water for AWBA to GRUSP; 

provided however, that AWBA indemnification shall only extend to the 

percentage of degradation attributable to the AWBA water entering the 

Association Water Delivery System under the terms of this Lease 

Agreement. 

13. BILLING AND PAYMENTS:

13.1 Bills for services provided to AWBA shall be submitted by the

Association to AWBA on or before the twenty-fifth (25th) day of each 

month (or if such day is not a business day, on the next succeeding 

business day) immediately following the month during which AWBA has 

incurred charges for such services. Such bills may include adjustments 

or corrections to bills previously submitted by the Association to AWBA. 

13.2 Payment by AWBA to the Association shall be made in good funds on 

or before the thirtieth (30th) day following the date on which the bill was 

postmarked or if such day is not a business day, on the next succeeding 

business day. Bills which are not paid by this date shall be delinquent 

and thereafter accrue an interest charge at the prime rate of interest as 

established by the Bank of America on the last business day of the 



month following the month for which the bill was submitted, plus 6% per 

annum, prorated by days of the unpaid principal, computed daily until 

payment is received. Any payment received shall first be applied to any 

interest charges owed, and then to any bills owed for services rendered. 

13.3 In the event any portion of any bill is disputed, the disputed amount shall 

be paid when due, but may be accompanied by a written statement 

indicating the basis for any dispute. If the dispute is found to be valid, 

AWBA shall be refunded any overpayment plus interest, accrued at the 

rate set forth in Subarticle 13.2, prorated by days from the date payment 

was credited to AWBA to the date the refund check is mailed. 

13.4 In the event any delinquent amount is not paid by AWBA within thirty 

(30) days after receipt by AWBA of written notice from the Association of

the delinquency, the Association shall have the right, without liability of 

any kind, to refuse to transport and store AWBA water so long as the 

said amount remains unpaid, and may terminate this Lease Agreement. 

Nothing herein shall limit the rights of the Association to use any other 

available legal remedy to effect collection of said amounts. 

14. AUTHORIZATIONS AND APPROVALS:

AWBA shall be responsible for obtaining, at its own expense, any permits,

authorizations and approvals required for the underground storage and

recovery of water in GRUSP or for AWBA's performance under this Lease

Agreement. AWBA shall keep the Association informed of its applications for

such permits and authorizations. The Association will share information with

AWBA to assist AWBA in its permit application. AWBA shall also be

responsible for filing any annual reports or other documents necessary to

maintain its right to store water at GRUSP.

15. LIABILITY:

15.1 Except as otherwise provided in this Lease Agreement, AWBA shall

indemnify, hold harmless and release Association, its directors, officers 

and employees against and from any damage, loss or any liability for 

death, injury, loss or damage incurred by any customer, citizen, 

employee, contractor, sub-contractor or agent of AWBA as a result of 

any performance pursuant to this Lease Agreement. 

15.2 The obligation to indemnify under Section 12 and this Section 15 shall 

extend to the indemnities' share of any deductibles under any applicable 

insurance coverage. 



15.3 Neither Association nor the other parties to the CSIF IGA shall assume 

any liability to AWBA for claims of damage resulting from Association's 

decision or the decision of CAWCD to curtail or stop water flows to or 

from the CSIF in accordance with the requirements of CAWCD and/or 

Association water operations, or to terminate deliveries of water to or 

from the CSI F solely in accordance with the requirements of 

Association. 

15.4 The provisions of this Section 15 shall not be construed so as to relieve 

any insurer providing insurance coverage pursuant to Section 16.1 of its 

obligation to pay any insurance proceeds in accordance with the terms 

and conditions of valid and collectible insurance policies. 

15.5 In the event any third party institutes an action against Association, 

other parties to the CSIF IGA, AWBA or other lessees of CSIF capacity, 

for claims arising from the activities undertaken pursuant to this Lease 

Agreement, the parties named in the action shall meet to coordinate the 

procurement of legal counsel and the steps necessary to defend against 

the action. 

16. INSURANCE

16.1 During the term of this Lease Agreement, unless otherwise agreed in

writing by Association, AWBA shall procure and maintain in force or 

cause to be procured and maintained in force, Commercial General 

Liability Insurance including bodily injury, personal injury, and property 

damage, wrongful death, and contractual liability with a minimum limit of 

$5,000,000 per occurrence. Auto Liability with a minimum combined 

single limit of $5,000,000 per occurrence. Both the commercial general 

and auto liability cover should name Association and the other parties to 

the CSIF IGA as additional insureds. Additionally, AWBA must show 

evidence of Workers compensation insurance with minimum statutory 

limits to cover obligations imposed by applicable federal and state 

statutes and Employer's Liability insurance with a minimum limit of 

$1,000,000. 

16.2 Any insurance carried by Association or other parties to the CSIF-IGA 

shall be excess and not contributory insurance to any insurance afforded 

hereunder. The commercial general liability and workers compensation 

insurance policies should include a waiver of subrogation in favor the 

Association and the other parties to the CSIF IGA. Proof of insurance 



r 
satisfactory to Association shall be submitted to Association prior to use 

of the CSIF by AWBA. Such proof of insurance shall be in the form of a 

certificate stating the coverage provided and that such insurance is in 

force and that such insurance shall not be canceled until after thirty (30) 

days prior written notice thereof shall have been given to Association. 

16.3 With written approval of Association, AWBA may self-insure or combine 

the coverage's required by this Lease Agreement with coverage's 

outside the scope of that required by this Lease Agreement. 

16.4 Required insurance coverage's shall be written with deductibles and 

limits approved by Association. Association may, at any time, change 

the policy limits, add or eliminate coverage(s), and shall determine 

appropriate deductibles or retentions. 

16.5 If AWBA fails to acquire, provide or continue the insurance coverage's 

required; Association may terminate this Lease Agreement immediately 

upon written notice to AWBA. 

17. Miscellaneous

17 .1 The Agreement is subject to cancellation in accordance with the

provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

17.2 The Parties shall comply with State Executive Order No. 75-5, as 

amended by State Executive Order No. 2009-9, and all other Federal or 

State laws, rules and regulation, including the Americans with Disabilities 

Act. 

17.3 The Parties shall obtain and maintain all licenses, permits and authority 

necessary to perform their obligations pursuant to this Agreement, and 

shall comply with all applicable state, federal and local laws, including but 

not limited to those regarding unemployment insurance, disability 

insurance and worker's compensation. This Agreement does not relieve 

either party from any obligation or responsibility imposed upon it by law. 

17.4 Neither party shall be considered an officer, employee or agent of the 

other. No monitoring or supervisory responsibility over the other party's 

activities arises on the part of the other arises or as a result of, or 

pursuant to, this Agreement other than as expressly provided herein. 

17.5 All books, accounts, reports, files and other records relating to this 

Agreement shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection and 

audit by the State of Arizona and the AWBA for five (5) years after 

completion of the Agreement. Such records shall be produced at such 



state offices as are designated by the State of Arizona and the AWBA. 

18. DEFAULT:

In the event of a default by AWBA or Association of any obligation herein, then,

within thirty (30) days following notice of such default by the non-defaulting

Party, the defaulting Party shall remedy such default by advancing the

necessary funds and/or rendering the necessary performance. Such notice

shall specify the existence and nature of such default. If such default is not

remedied within the time specified, the non-defaulting Party may terminate this

Lease Agreement upon twenty four (24) hours written notice.

19. UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES:
No Party shall be considered in default in the performance of any of its

obligations under this Lease Agreement (other than obligations of said Party to

pay costs and expenses) when a failure of performance is due to Uncontrollable

Forces. Nothing contained in this Lease Agreement shall be construed so as to

require a Party to settle any strike or labor dispute in which it is involved. Any

Party rendered unable to fulfill any of its obligations under this Lease

Agreement by reason of an Uncontrollable Force shall give prompt written

notice of such fact to the other Party and shall exercise due diligence to remove

such inability.

20. GOVERNING LAW:
The laws of the State of Arizona shall govern this Lease Agreement without
regard for conflict of law principles. To the extent required by A.R.S. §§ 12-
1518(8) and 12-133, the parties agree to resolve any dispute arising out of this
agreement by arbitration.

21. ASSIGNMENT:
This Lease Agreement shall not be assigned by AWBA or accrue to AWBA's

successor, nor shall AWBA's Lease rights hereunder be used by another party.

22. NOTICES:
22.1 Notice, demand or request provided for in this L e  a s  e Agreement

shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly served, given or made 

if delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage 

prepaid, to the persons specified below: 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 
c/o Manager 
3550 N. Central Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 



Salt River Valley Water Users• Association 
c/o Corporate Secretary 
PO Box 52025 
Mail Station PAB 215 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 
Reference: GRUSP 

22.2 A party may, at any time, by notice to the other Party, designate 

different or additional persons or different addresses for the giving of 

notices. 

23. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:

This Lease Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties, and does not

create nor shall it be construed to create rights in any third party unless

expressly provided herein. No third party may enforce the terms and

conditions of this Lease Agreement.

24. WAIVER:

The waiver by either Party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition

herein contained shall not be deemed a waiver of any other term, covenant or

condition, or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant

or condition herein contained.

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:

The terms, covenants and conditions of this L e  a s  e Agreement

constitute the entire agreement between the Parties relative to the leasing of

CSIF capacity and GRUSP capacity, and no understandings or agreements

not herein expressly set forth shall be binding upon them. This Lease

Agreement may not be modified or amended in any manner unless in writing

and signed by the Parties.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Lease Agreement is executed by the Parties 
hereto. 

SALT RIVER VALLEY WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION 

By: ______________ _ 

Attest: ______________ Secretary 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

By: ______________ _ 

Attest: ______________ Secretary 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

950508CW.tjk 

WATER TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

SALT RIVER VALLEY WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION 

AND 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

WATER TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION TITLE PAGE 

1. PARTIES.................................................................................................................... 1 

2. RECITALS.................................................................................................................. 1 

3. AGREEMENT............................................................................................................. 3 

4. DEFINITIONS............................................................................................................. 3 

Annual Index .............................................................................................................. . 

Association Water Delivery System ........................................................................... . 

Evacuated Water ....................................................................................................... . 

Interconnection Facility .............................................................................................. . 

Point of Delivery ........................................................................................................ . 

Point of Receipt ......................................................................................................... . 

AWBA Water ............................................................................................................. . 

Transportation Losses ............................................................................................... . 

Uncontrollable Forces ................................................................................................ . 

Water Accounting ...................................................................................................... . 

5. SCOPE OF SERVICE ............................................................................................... . 

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT .......................................................................................... . 

7. RATES, FEES AND CHARGES ................................................................................ . 

8. BILLING AND PAYMENT .......................................................................................... . 

9. WATER ACCOUNTING ............................................................................................ . 

10. WATER QUALITY ..................................................................................................... . 

11. TRANSPORTATION LOSSES .................................................................................. . 

12. PRIORITY OF SERVICE ........................................................................................... . 

13. RIGHT TO CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT ......................................................... . 

950508CW .tjk 

3 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

5 

5 

5 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

10 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

SECTION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TITLE PAGE 

DISTRIBUTION.......................................................................................................... 10 

INTERRUPTIONS OR CURTAILMENTS IN DELIVERY........................................... 10 

FLOW MEASUREMENT............................................................................................ 11 

ACCESS TO PREMISES AND FACILITIES.............................................................. 11 

FUTURE FACILITIES................................................................................................. 11 

NOTICE OF WATER DELIVER! ES ......... ................... ... .............. .............................. 12 

LIABILITY................................................................................................................... 12 

INSURANCE .............................................................................................................. 13 

AUDIT......................................................................................................................... 14 

UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES ............................ .................. .............. ..................... 15 

NOTICES ................................................................................................................... 15 

WAIVER..................................................................................................................... 15 

HEADINGS................................................................................................................. 15 

RECLAMATION REFORM ACT................................................................................. 15 

RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES................................................................................... 16 

ACTION PENDING RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES................................................... 17 

GOVERNING LAW ..................... ................................ ... ..... ............. .......................... 17 

PERMITS.................................................................................................................... 17 

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES......................................................................... 17 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT .............................................................................................. 17 

95050BCW.tjk 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

WATER TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 

1. PARTIES:

The Parties to this Water Transportation Agreement (Agreement) made and entered into as of

this __ day of _____ � 20_, are the ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY

(AWBA), and SALT RIVER VALLEY WATER USERS' ASSOCIATION, an Arizona corporation

(Association).

2. RECITALS:

This Agreement is made with regard to the following:

2.1 The Colorado River Basin Project Act of 1968 (82 Stat. 885) provides, among other 

things, that for the purposes of furnishing irrigation water and municipal and industrial 

water supplies to water deficient areas in Arizona and Western New Mexico through 

direct diversion or exchange of water, control of floods, conservation, development of 

fish and wildlife resources, enhancement of recreation opportunities and for other 

purposes, the Secretary of Interior for the United States of America (Secretary of 

Interior) shall construct, operate and maintain the Central Arizona Project (CAP). 

2.2 

950508CW.tjk 

Shareholders of Association are owners of land within the Salt River Reservoir District, 

having valid appropriative rights to waters of the Salt and Verde Rivers. Association is 

responsible for delivery to said lands of waters developed, controlled or stored by it for 

the benefit of such lands. Association is the agent of the Salt River Project Agricultural 

Improvement and Power District (District), a political subdivision of the State of 

Arizona, in the operation of the water delivery system of the Salt River Project, a 

federal reclamation project, pursuant to an agreement dated March 22, 1937, as 

amended by agreements dated February 28, 1944, and September 12, 1949, and is 

also the agent of the United States of America (USA) in the operation of said federal 

reclamation project pursuant to contract dated 



( 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

September 6, 1917. Association, in distributing water developed by Salt River Project 

works and facilities, is governed by the decree in Hurley v. Abbott, filed March 1, 1910, 

and all supplemental decrees thereto, all commonly referred to as the "Kent Decree"; 

the Articles of Incorporation and By-laws and rules and regulations of Association; 

contracts now in effect and hereafter executed between the Association, the District 

and the USA; rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary of Interior, pursuant 

to the provisions of an Act of Congress, approved June 17, 1902 (32 stat. 388), and 

acts amendatory thereof and supplementary hereto, all of which are commonly known 

and referred to as Federal Reclamation Law; and by applicable laws of the State of 

Arizona. 

2.3 The Arizona Water Banking Authority is an agency of the State of Arizona established 

under A.RS. 45-2421. 

2.4 Association operates and maintains the water delivery system on behalf of and for the 

primary benefit of its shareholders, who hold rights to water developed by the Salt 

River Project, and to whom Association is obligated to deliver such water. 

2.5 AWBA is obtaining CAP water and is obtaining contracts to transport such water 

through the Interconnection Facility. 

2.6 AWBA is in need of a link between the Interconnection Facility and its facilities; 

therefore, AWBA desires to transport CAP water through the Association Water 

Delivery System for use by AWBA, and has the authority to enter into this Agreement 

for transportation of such water. 

2.7 Association does not as a rule make its water delivery system available to all water 

users potentially served by it and does not operate for profit. However, as an 

accommodation to AWBA and for the incidental benefit to Association shareholders, 

Association will transport CAP water for AWBA as an incident to its primary function; 

provided that the transportation of such water shall not in any way disrupt or interfere 

950508CW.tjk 2 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

2.8 

with the operation of the Association Water Delivery System on behalf of Association 

shareholders and pursuant to existing decrees and existing contracts; and provided 

further that this Agreement will not affect the responsibilities of Association with 

respect to waters developed, controlled or stored by Association and delivered 

pursuant to rights of Association shareholders, and decrees and contracts. 

As Association limits the use of the Association Water Delivery System to the 

transportation and delivery of water to its shareholders and those entities with specific 

entitlements to such delivery service, to the exclusion of the general public, this 

Agreement is necessary for Association to transport CAP water for AWBA 

3. AGREEMENT:

In consideration of the premises and mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth, the

Parties hereto agree as follows:

4. DEFINITIONS:

As used in this Agreement the following terms, when capitalized, have the meanings

indicated:

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

950508CW.tjk 

Annual Index: The number calculated by dividing the U.S. Department of Commerce's

final estimate of the Implicit Gross Domestic Product Price Deflator

for the third quarter of the most recently completed year by the value of that same

quantity for the third quarter of the previous year. The Annual Index shall be

determined in January of each year commencing in 1996.

Association Water Delivery System: Association's canal system, including canals,

gates and measuring devices; but excluding laterals and drain ditches.

Evacuated Water: Water released from the Association Water Delivery System:

a) 

b) 

As a result of excess storm runoff and under emergency conditions. 

In the event of the discovery of contaminated water in the Association Water 

Delivery System. 

3 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

4.4 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

4.8 

4.9 

950508CW.tjk 

Interconnection Facility: The facility located adjacent to the Granite Reef Diversion 

Dam which interconnects the CAP Canal with the Association Water Delivery System 

and the Salt River Bed. 

Point Of Delivery: The point at which AWBA Water is diverted from the Association's 

Water Delivery System for delivery to GRUSP for the AWBA. Unless otherwise 

agreed in writing by the Parties, the Point of Delivery is the GRUSP delivery gates that 

are located just upstream of the Hennessy drain gates on the Association's South 

Canal. 

Point Of Receipt: The point where the Interconnection Facility discharges into the 

Association's Water Delivery System. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 

Parties, the Point of Receipt is the point where the South Canal component of the 

Interconnection Facility discharges into the Association's South Canal. 

AWBA Water: CAP water discharged for AWBA into the Association Water Delivery 

System from the Interconnection Facility. 

Transportation Losses: The amount of water lost through seepage, evaporation or 

other causes while being transported within the Association Water Delivery System 

from the Point of Receipt to the Point of Delivery. Transportation Losses shall not 

include Evacuated Water. 

Uncontrollable Forces: Any cause beyond the control of the Party unable to perform 

such obligation, including, but not limited to, failure of or threat of failure 

of facilities, flood, earthquake, storm, fire, lightning and other natural catastrophes, 

epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, strike, labor dispute, labor or 

material shortage, sabotage, government priorities and restraint by court order or 

public authority, and action or nonaction by, or failure to obtain the necessary 

authorizations or approvals from, any governmental agency or authority, which by 

exercise of due diligence such Party could not reasonably have been expected to 

4 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

avoid and which by exercise of due diligence it shall be unable to overcome. Nothing 

contained herein shall be construed to require either Party to settle any strike or labor 

dispute in which it is involved. 

4.1 O Water Accounting: The general determination of the quantity of AWBA Water 

transported by Association hereunder. 

5. SCOPE OF SERVICE:

This Agreement is limited to transportation of AWBA Water in the Association Water Delivery

System from the Point of Receipt to the Point of Delivery.

6. TERM OF AGREEMENT:

This Agreement shall be effective as of the date stipulated in Section 1 and shall remain in

effect until its expiration on January 1 of the following year. Upon written confirmation by

Association, this Agreement may be extended for additional terms of one calendar year each

by written notice from AWBA to Association by October 1 of the then current year.

Association shall confirm or reject extension of the Agreement by November 15 of the then

current year. This Agreement may be terminated as provided in this Agreement, or upon 30

days written notice by either Party to the other Party.

7. RATES, FEES, AND CHARGES:

7.1 

7.2 

950508CW.tjk 

Association shall bill AWBA and AWBA shall pay Association $5 for each acre foot 

(AF) of AWBA Water received at the Point of Receipt whether or not AWBA accepted 

or used such water. 

Association shall also bill AWBA and AWBA shall pay Association an annual 

administration fee of $2,827.95 for the administration and water accounting related to 

the transportation service provided under this Agreement. This fee shall be adjusted 

by the Annual Index each January. The fee shall be billed when service is 

commenced and in each January thereafter, and paid in accordance with Section 8. 

6 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

The fee shall be prorated for those partial years of service resulting from initiation or 

permanent termination of service pursuant to this or a successor Agreement. 

7.3 For purposes of this Section 7, "adjusted by the Annual Index" means that the rate or 

the annual administration fee for the previous calendar year is multiplied by the Annual 

Index. 

7.4 If, as a result of the service provided to AWBA pursuant to this Agreement, 

Association becomes liable to a governmental authority other than District for any tax, 

tariff, duty, toll, fee, impost, charge or other exaction, or any increase thereof, pursuant 

to Section 8, Association shall bill AWBA and AWBA shall pay Association the amount 

for which Association is liable. 

8. BILLING AND PAYMENT:

8.1 Bills for service provided to AWBA shall be submitted by Association to AWBA on or 

before the twenty-fifth (25th) day of each month (or if such day is not a business day, 

on the next succeeding business day) immediately following the month during which 

AWBA has incurred charges for such service. Such bills may include adjustments or 

corrections to bills previously submitted by Association to AWBA

8.2 Payment by AWBA to Association shall be made by any method which provides 

available funds on or before the thirtieth (30th) day following the date on which the bill 

was postmarked or if such day is not a business day, on the next succeeding business 

day. Bills not paid by this date shall be delinquent and thereafter accrue an interest 

charge at the prime rate of interest as established by the Bank of America on the last 

business day of the month following the month for which the bill was submitted, plus 

2% per annum, prorated daily from the date due to the date of payment. Any payment 

received shall first be applied to any interest charges owed, and then to any bills owed 

for service rendered. 

950508CW.tjk 6 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

8.3 

8.4 

In the event any portion of any bill is disputed, the disputed amount shall be paid under 

protest when due and shall be accompanied by a written statement indicating the basis 

for the protest. If the protest is found to be valid, AWBA shall be refunded any 

overpayment plus interest, accrued at the rate set forth in Section 8.2, prorated by the 

number of days from the date payment was credited to AWBA to the date the refund 

check is mailed. 

In the event any delinquent amount remains unpaid more than sixty (60) days after its 

due date, Association shall have the right, without liability of any kind, to refuse to 

provide service under this Agreement so long as the said amount remains unpaid and 

may terminate this Agreement. In any event, AWBA shall remain obligated to pay for 

service actually provided under this Agreement, whether billed or yet to be billed. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the rights of Association to use any other available 

legal remedy to effect collection of said amounts. 

9. WATER ACCOUNTING:

9.1 

9.2 

9.3 

950508CW.tjk 

Association will provide daily Water Accounting of AWBA Water received for AWBA at 

the Point of Receipt. Such Water Accounting shall be retained by Association for at 

least three (3) years and be made available for AWBA's inspection upon 

written request. 

AWBA shall provide a monthly report of the total amount of water received each day 

during the month as measured at each Point of Delivery in accordance with operating 

procedures prepared by Association. Such report shall be submitted to Association by 

the sixth (6th) business day following the month end, pursuant to such operating 

procedures. 

Association shall prepare a monthly Water Accounting report based on the daily Water 

Accounting provided under Section 9.1. It shall also include the daily water deliveries 

as reported by AWBA pursuant to Section 9.2. Such Water Accounting report may be 

7 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

combined with other existing Association reports provided to AWBA and shall include 

AWBA Water delivered to the Point of Delivery, Transportation Losses, and Evacuated 

Water during that month. 

9.4 Inadvertent water flow discrepancies between scheduled and actual water flows shall 

be resolved by the Parties in a mutually agreeable manner. 

10. WATER QUALITY:

10.1 Association neither guarantees nor warrants the quality of water transported through 

the Association Water Delivery System to, or for, AWBA pursuant to this Agreement, 

and AWBA assumes all responsibility for purifying or otherwise treating AWBA Water 

received at AWBA's Point of Delivery to meet applicable water quality standards 

established by federal, state or local authorities. AWBA releases Association from any 

liability for AWBA claims related to water quality, unless such water quality claim 

results from Association's negligent or intentionally wrongful commingling of AWBA's 

Water with other water in the Association Water Delivery System. Nothing in this 

Agreement shall be construed so as to require that Association receive or transport 

water from any source when such receipt or transportation is likely to result in a 

violation of then existing federal, state or local 

laws or regulations regarding water quality. 

10.2 Except as otherwise provided in Section 20.1, AWBA shall indemnify and hold 

harmless Association from and against all losses to third parties resulting from water 

quality degradation resulting from the commingling of AWBA Water with other water in 

the Association Water Delivery System, and shall defend Association against all claims 

for such losses, at no cost to Association. 

10.3 If Association coincidentally introduces water into the Association Water Delivery 

System through the Interconnection Facility, or other causes contribute to the losses of 

950508CW.tjk 8 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

third parties, AWBA will indemnify and defend only for those losses to third parties 

attributable to commingling of AWBA Water in the Association Water Delivery System. 

10.4 Association shall cooperate fully with AWBA in the defense of all claims of third parties 

for losses under this Section 1 O and shall provide AWBA with all information, expert 

witnesses and records necessary for AWBA to defend against such claims. 

10.5 AWBA's obligation to indemnify under this Section 1 O shall encompass all costs of 

defending against claims by third parties for such losses and all costs incurred by 

Association in cooperating with AWBA under Section 10.4 in the defense of such 

claims. 

11. TRANSPORTATION LOSSES:

AWBA shall be assessed Transportation Losses at the rate of 0.06 percent per AF per mile

between the Point of Receipt and the Point of Delivery. Using the water balance of supply and

delivery, a procedure similar to the loss calculation used in standard reporting to the Arizona

Department of Water Resources and the United States Bureau of Reclamation, Association

shall review and adjust such Transportation Loss rate annually in April based on annual

average Association Water Delivery System losses during the

preceding five (5) years. Such adjusted rate shall remain in effect until next adjusted.

12. PRIORITY OF SERVICE:

12.1 AWBA Water may be transported under this Agreement only to the extent that such 

transportation does not impair nor prejudice the transportation and delivery of water A) 

to Association shareholders, or B) pursuant to decrees, or C) pursuant to contracts 

between Association and any third parties. 

12.2 Association shall transport water, as among all contractors for such service from 

Association, according to the capacity of the Association Water Delivery System as 

determined and allocated by Association. 

950508CW. tjk 9 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

13. RIGHT TO CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT:

13.1 Association retains the right to contract directly with other entities desiring 

transportation of water in the Association Water Delivery System. 

13.2 AWBA may not subcontract services provided to it by Association under this 

Agreement. 

14. DISTRIBUTION:

14.1 Association's obligations and responsibilities to AWBA under this Agreement shall 

commence at the Point of Receipt and shall terminate at the Point of Delivery. AWBA 

shall be responsible and assume full liability for the further distribution of AWBA Water 

received at the Point of Delivery, including, but not limited to, all operation and 

maintenance costs for delivery to AWBA's end users. 

15. INTERRUPTIONS OR CURTAILMENTS IN DELIVERY:

15.1 Transportation of AWBA Water shall be in accordance with AWBA's requests as set 

forth in Section 19 of this Agreement, and shall be subject to: 

950508CW.tjk 

15.1.1 Interruptions and curtailments in the capability of Association to transport 

AWBA Water due to emergencies, canal dry up, operational constraints 

and necessary maintenance and repairs of the Association 

15.1.2 

Water Delivery System, all as determined solely by Association. 

Interruptions, evacuations and curtailments because of excessive storm 

runoff entering the Association Water Delivery System, as determined 

solely by Association, or because Association determines that significant 

degradation of water quality in the Association Water Delivery System likely 

to result in substantial liability is occurring or may occur as a result of 

introduction of AWBA Water, contamination or contaminated water in the 

Association Water Delivery System. 

10 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

15.1.3 No obligation on the part of Association to replace any portion of AWBA 

Water evacuated from the Association Water Delivery System. 

15.1.4 Availability of AWBA Water at the Point of Receipt, as determined by 

Association. 

16. FLOW MEASUREMENT:

CAP water transported for AWBA pursuant to this Agreement shall be measured at or near

the Point of Delivery in accordance with requirements of maintaining the accuracy of these

systems within plus or minus five (5) percent of actual flows.

17. ACCESS TO PREMISES AND FACILITIES:

AWBA hereby grants to Association, its employees and agents the right of access to the

premises identified as the Point of Delivery, at reasonable times and after reasonable notice

from Association, for such purposes as installing, connecting, reading, testing, repairing,

adjusting, disconnecting, removing or inspecting meters, measuring devices, communications

equipment, data devices and other apparatus and equipment pertinent to the provision of or

accounting for service under this Agreement.

18. FUTURE FACILITIES:

AWBA bears responsibility and cost for any facility needed at a future point of receipt or Point

of Delivery to effect service under this Agreement.

19. NOTICE OF WATER DELIVERIES:

AWBA shall provide adequate notice to Association of AWBA's water orders and any

subsequent order changes, in accordance with operating procedures established by

Association. Operating procedures established by Association shall provide that, in the event

of a pending canal capacity curtailment, Association shall give AWBA as much notice as

reasonably practicable of the pending curtailment. Association shall schedule, transport and

account for AWBA Water. Transportation of AWBA Water shall be subject to operational and

maintenance constraints common to all parties served by the Association Water Delivery

95050BCW.tjk 11 



r 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

System. The amount of AWBA Water requested by AWBA less Transportation Losses, shall 

be delivered by Association to the Point of Delivery, subject to the provisions of Section 15. 

Association shall schedule and monitor the transportation of AWBA Water so as not to in any 

manner whatsoever interfere with the operation and maintenance of the Association Water 

Delivery System. 

20. LIABILITY:

20.1 Each Party shall assume liability arising out of its negligence or intentionally wrongful 

action or inaction, and shall indemnify the other Party against any damages such other 

Party incurs as a result of such action or inaction, including costs or defending against 

related claims. 

20.2 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, AWBA shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the Association, its directors, officers and employees against and from any 

liability for death, injury, loss or damage incurred by any customer/member of AWBA

as a result of any performance pursuant to this Agreement. 

20.3 The obligation to indemnify under Sections 1 0 and 20 of this Agreement shall extend to 

the indemnitee's share of any deductibles under any applicable insurance coverage. 

20.4 Association assumes no liability to AWBA for claims of damage resulting from 

Association's decision to curtail or stop water flows to or from the Interconnection 

Facility in accordance with the requirements of Association water operations. 

20.5 The provisions of this Section 20 shall not be construed so as to relieve any insurer 

providing insurance coverage pursuant to Section 21.1 of its obligation to pay any 

insurance proceeds in accordance with the terms and conditions of valid and 

collectible insurance policies. 

21. INSURANCE:

21.1 During the term of this Agreement, unless otherwise agreed in writing by Association, 

AWBA shall procure and maintain in force or cause to be procured and maintained in 

950508CW.tjk 12 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

force Commercial General Liability Insurance naming Association as an additional 

insured, including bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage, wrongful death, 

automobile liability, and contractual liability with a minimum limit of $5,000,000 per 

occurrence, 

21.2 Any insurance carried by Association shall be excess and not contributory insurance to 

any insurance afforded hereunder. Proof of insurance satisfactory to Association shall 

be submitted to Association prior to transportation of water for AWBA Such proof of 

insurance shall be in the form of a certificate stating the coverage provided and that 

such insurance is in force and that such insurance shall not be cancelled until after 

thirty (30) days prior written notice thereof shall have been given to Association. 

21.3 With written approval of Association, AWBA may self-insure or combine the coverages 

required by this Agreement with coverages outside the scope of that required by this 

Agreement. 

21.4 Required insurance coverages shall be written with deductibles and limits approved by 

Association. Association may, at any time, change the policy limits, add or eliminate 

coverage(s), and shall determine appropriate deductibles or retentions. 

21.5 AWBA fails to acquire, provide or continue the insurance coverages required, 

Association may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice to AWBA 

22. AUDIT:

22.1 Upon reasonable written notice, either Party at its expense shall have the right, at all 

reasonable times, to review and audit the books, records and documents of the other 

Party directly pertaining to the billings and Water Accounting data required to 

administer this Agreement. Any such audit may be conducted by an employee of or 

independent accountant designated by the auditing Party. The Party being audited 

agrees to fully cooperate with any such audit. This right to audit shall extend for a 

period of three (3) years following the date of each payment under this Agreement. 

950508CW.tjk 13 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

The Parties agree to retain all necessary records and documentation during this audit 

period. The foregoing shall not be construed to permit either Party to conduct a 

general audit of the other Party's records. Information obtained by either Party's 

representatives in examining the other Party's applicable records to verify such billings 

and Water Accounting data shall not be disclosed to third parties without prior written 

consent of the audited party, or unless in response to compulsory judicial or regulatory 

process or state law and after giving the other Party written notice as much in advance 

as possible. 

22.2 The audited Party shall be notified in writing of any exception taken as a result of an 

audit and shall respond to such notification within thirty (30) days. Upon resolution of 

any exception, A) as to payment of any monies due, the owing Party shall directly remit 

the amount of any exception to the other Party within thirty (30) days, with interest 

calculated at the rate set forth in Section 8.2. Interest shall be computed from the date 

of the original billing to the date of payment by the Party owing as a result of the Audit; 

B) as to any water due, the Parties shall

arrrange for the owing Party to return the amount owed as soon as practicable. 

23. UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES:

Neither Party shall be considered to be in default in the performance of any of its obligations

hereunder (other than the obligation of AWBA to make payment for service hereunder) when

a failure of performance shall be due to Uncontrollable Forces.

24. MISCELLANEOUS

24.1 The Agreement is subject to cancellation in accordance with the provisions of A.RS. § 

38-511.

24.2 The Parties shall comply with State Executive Order No. 75-5, as amended by State 

Executive Order No. 2009-9, and all other Federal or State laws, rules and regulation, 

including the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

950508CW. tjk 14 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

25. 

24.3 The Parties shall obtain and maintain all licenses, permits and authority necessary to 

perform their obligations pursuant to this Agreement, and shall comply with all 

applicable state, federal and local laws, including but not limited to those regarding 

unemployment insurance, disability insurance and worker's compensation. This 

Agreement does not relieve either party from any obligation or responsibility imposed 

upon it by law. 

24.4 Neither party shall be considered an officer, employee or agent of the other. No 

monitoring or supervisory responsibility over the other party's activities arises on the 

part of the other arises or as a result of, or pursuant to, this Agreement other than as 

expressly provided herein. 

24.5 All books, accounts, reports, files and other records relating to this Agreement shall be 

subject at all reasonable times to inspection and audit by the State of Arizona and the 

AWBA for five (5) years after completion of the Agreement. Such records shall be 

produced at such state offices as are designated by the State of Arizona and the 

AWBA. 

NOTICES: 

Any notice, demand or request provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered 

in person, or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to: 

Salt River Valley Water Users Association 

c/o Secretary 
PO Box 52025 
Phoenix, AZ 85072-2025 
Reference: Water Transportation Agreement 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 
c/o Manager 
3550 N. Central Avenue 
Phoenix, AZ 85012 

950508CW .tjk 15 



( 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

25. WAIVER:

The waiver by either Party of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein contained

shall not be deemed a waiver of any other term, covenant or condition, or any subsequent

breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained.

26. HEADINGS:

Title and paragraph headings herein are for reference only and are not part of this Agreement.

27. RECLAMATION REFORM ACT:

In no event shall Association's performance of obligations established herein subject

Association or its shareholders to provisions of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (RRA),

43 USC 390bb (1 ), as amended, and regulations attendant thereto, to which

Association would not otherwise have been subjected. Further, in the event a change of

legislation, future federal agency determination or other administrative or judicial action

subjects or purports to subject Association to the RRA as a result of Association's

performance of obligations established herein, Association shall be relieved of any further

obligations hereunder, and this Agreement shall be voidable at Association's discretion.

28. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES:

28.1 Any Party having a dispute under this Agreement that cannot be resolved by the 

Parties, may submit the dispute to arbitration. Arbitration shall be subject to the 

following provisions: 

950508CW.tjk 

28.1.1 

28.1.2 

Arbitration shall be binding only upon the consent of the Parties. 

A Party wishing to submit a dispute to arbitration shall provide thirty (30) 

days written notice to the other Party of its intent to pursue arbitration and 

shall name one arbitrator at that time. Within fifteen (15) days of receiving 

this notice, the other Party to the dispute shall name one arbitrator and give 

written notice to the other Party of its selection. The two selected 

15 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

28.1.3 

28.1.4 

arbitrators shall, within five (5) days of selection of the second arbitrator, 

jointly select a third arbitrator. 

Within thirty (30) days from the selection of the third arbitrator, the 

arbitrators shall hold a hearing. Within thirty (30) days from the conclusion 

of the hearing the arbitrators shall render a decision on the dispute. 

Arbitration shall be subject to the Arizona Arbitration Act, Arizona Revised 

Statutes, Title 12, Chapter 9, Article 1. In the event of a conflict between 

this Agreement and the Act, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

28.2 Any Party that is dissatisfied with the results of non-binding arbitration may pursue 

any other legal or equitable remedy not expressly provided for in this Section 28 and 

available to resolve the dispute. 

29. ACTION PENDING RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES:

Pending the resolution of a dispute pursuant to Section 28, the Parties shall proceed, to the

extent legally permissible, in a manner consistent with this Agreement, and shall make

payments required in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Agreement. Amounts

paid by a Party pursuant to this Section 29 during the pendency of such dispute shall be

subject to refund and adjustment upon a final resolution of any dispute involving an amount

due. Upon such final resolution, the owed amounts shall be remitted in accordance with the

remittance procedures/arrangements contained in Section 8.

30. GOVERNING LAW:

This Agreement is made under, and shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Arizona.

31. PERMITS:

AWBA shall be responsible for obtaining any permits required to discharge AWBA Water into

the Association Water Delivery System; except that if any permits are required to discharge

AWBA Water from Association-owned or operated facilities into the Association Water

950508CW.tjk 16 



r 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

Delivery System, Association and AWBA shall be jointly responsible for obtaining the permits. 

Denial of any necessary permit shall not result in liability of either Party to the other. 

32. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:

This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties, and does not create nor shall it be

construed to create rights in any third party. No third party may enforce the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

33. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:

The terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement constitute the entire Agreement

between the Parties and no understandings or obligations not herein expressly set forth shall

be binding upon them. This Agreement may not be modified or amended in any manner

unless in writing and signed by the Parties.

950508CW.tjk 17 



1 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the Parties on the date first hereinabove 

2 written. 

3 SALT RIVER VALLEY WATER USERS' 
ASSOCIATION 

5 Attest and Countersign 

6 

7 

8 

9 

By: _______________ _ 
Secretary 

Title: 

Approved as to form and within the Power and 
10 Authority granted under the laws of the Territory of 

Arizona to the Salt River Valley Water Users' Association 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Attest and Countersign 

----------------

19 

20 

21 

By: _______________ _ 
Secretary 

22 Approved as to form and within the 
Power and Authority granted under the laws 

23 of the State of Arizona to the _____ _ 

24 

25 

26 

950508CW.tjk 19 

Title: 
----------------



IX. Discussion and potential action regarding matters discussed during Executive Session

1. Draft IGA between A WBA and GRIC

Direction to staff to provide a final draft to the public for review. Written comments 

should be received by December 31st. 

2. Purchase and Sale Agreement for Long-term Storage Credits

POTENTIAL ACTION: 

Motion to finalize credit purchase agreement with Tucson Water and authorize Chair 

to execute final agreement. 

3. Lease Agreement for Transportation through the CAP/SRP Interconnetion

Facility and Storage at GRUSP

POTENTIAL ACTION: 

Motion to authorize Chair to sign a request for exception for a contract, lease or other 

written agreement with regard to indemnification. 

4. Water Transportation Agreement between Salt River Valley Water Users'

Association and A WBA

POTENTIAL ACTION: 

Motion to authorize Chair to sign a request for exception for a contract, lease or other 

written agreement with regard to indemnification. 



X. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 

Wednesday, March 18, 2015 

Wednesday, June 17, 2015 

Wednesday, September 16, 2015 

Wednesday, December 2, 2015 




